UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark Onee,

0 QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

(F).rk the quarterly period ended September 30, 2024

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-12993

ALEXANDRIA REAL ESTATE EQUITIES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 95-4502084

(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Identification Number)
incorporation or organization)

26 North Euclid Avenue, Pasadena, California 91101
{:ddress of ?rincipal executive offices) (Zip code)

626) 578-0777
Rxgistrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Former name, former address and former fiscal tyrear, if changed since last report)

ecurities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:
Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share ARE New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes 0 No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and |
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter{dunng the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to submitand postsuch files). Yes 1 No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting
company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting
company,” and “emerging growth company’ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer 0 Smaller reporting company [
Accelerated filer 0 Emerging growth company [
Non-accelerated filer 0

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [1 No [
As of October 15, 2024, 174,762,259 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, were outstanding.

i
TABLE OF CONTENTS



PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 1.

ltem 2.

ltem 3.

ltem 4.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Consolidated Financial Statements for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023:

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Noncontrolling Interests

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ltem 1.

ltem 1A

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

RISKFACTORS

The following abbreviations or acronyms that may be used in this document
shall have the adjacent meanings set forth below:
U

ATM
cP
EPS
FASB
FFO

IRS
V
Nareit
NAV
NYSE
REIT
RSF
SEC
SF
SoDo
SOFR
SoMa
us.
VIE

Accounting Standards Update

At the Market

Construction in Progress

Earnings per Share

Financial Accounting Standards Board

Funds From Operations

U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Internal Revenue Senvice

Joint Venture

National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
Net Asset Value

New York Stock Exchange

Real Estate Investment Trust

Rentable Square Feet/Foot

Securities and Exchange Commission
Square Feet/Foot

South of Downtown submarket of Seattle
Secured Overnight Financing Rate

South of Market submarket of the San Francisco Bay Area
United States

Variable Interest Entity

Page

a4

113

114

115

115























































































44

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF ANANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-looking statements ) o . . . o

Certain information and statements included in this guarterly report on Form 10-Q, including, without limitation, statements

containing the words “forecast,” “guidance,” “goals,” “projects,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,”
“seeks,” “should,” “targets,” or “will,” or the negative of those words or similar words, constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties regarding events, conditions, and financial trends that
may affect our future plans of operations, business strategy, results of operations, and financial position. Anumber of important factors
could cause actual results to differ materially from those included within or contemplated by the forward-looking statements, including,
but not limited to, the follovvm%:a. . . . . )

Operating factors, such as a failure to operate our business successfullyin comparison to market expectations or in

comparison to our competitors, our inab||it¥to obtain capital when desired or refinance debt maturities when desired, and/

or afailure to maintain our status as a REIT for federal tax purposes; . . . .

*Market and industry factors, such as adverse developments conceming the life science industry and/or our tenants;

*Government factors, such as any unfavorable effects resulting from federal, state, local, and/or foreign government

policies, laws, and/or funding levels; . . - . . . . .

Global factors, such as negative economic, social, political, financial, credit market, banking conditions, and/or regional

armed hostilities; and

-%hgr fa(!ictors, such as climate change, cyber intrusions, and/or changes in laws, regulations, and financial accounting

standards.

This list of risks and uncertainties is not exhaustive. Additional information regarding risk factors that may affect us is included

under Part |; “ltem 1A Risk factors”; and “ltem 7. Management's discussion and anal %/ms of financial condition and results of
operations”in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and under respective sections in this ctuarterl
report on Form 10-Q. Readers of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q should also read our other documents filed publicly with the SE



for further discussion regarding such factors.
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Overview . . .
We are a Maryland corporation formed in October 1994 that has elected to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax
purposes. Alexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc. (NYSE: ARE), an S&P 500e company, is a best-in-class, mission-driven life science
REIT making a positive and Iastinf; impact on the world. As the pioneer of the life science real estate niche with ourfpundingfin 1994,
Aexandria is the preeminent and longest-tenured owner, operator, and develo&er of collaborative mega campuses in AAAlife science
innovation cluster locations, including Greater Boston, the San Francisco Bay Area, San Diego, Seattle, Maryland, Research Triangle,
and New York City. As of September 30, 2024, Alexandria has a total market capitalization of $33.1 billion and an asset base in North
America thatincludes 41.8 million RSF of OPeratmg properties, 5.3 million RSF of Class A/A+ properties undergoing construction, and
one committed near-term project expected to commence construction in the next two years. Alexandria has a longs ndlnc};]and proven
track record of developing Class A/A+ properties clustered in mega campuses that provide our innovative tenants with highly dynamic
and collaborative environments that enhance their ability to successfully recruit and retain world-class talent and inspire productivity,
efficiency, creativity, and success. Alexandria also provides strategic capital to transformative life science companies through our
venture capital platform. We believe our unique business model and di ilgent underwriting ensure a high-quality and diverse tenant base
that results in higher occupancy levels, longer lease terms, higher rental income, higher retums, and greater long-term asset value.
As of September 30, 2024:
«Investment-grade or publicly raded large cap tenants represented 53% of our annual rental revenue;
~Approximately 96% of our leases (on an annual rental revenue basis ) contained effective annual rent escalations
approximating 3% that were either fixed or indexed based on a consumer price indexor other index; .
~Approximately 93% of our leases (on an annual rental revenue basis) were triple net leases, which require tenants to pay
substantially all real estate taxes, insurance, utilities, repairs and maintenance, common area expenses, and other
erating expenses (including increases thereto) in addition to base rent; ) )
-&)prommat%ez% of our leases (on an annual rental revenue basis) provided for the recapture of capital expenditures
(such as HVAC maintenance and/or replacement, roof replacement, and parking lot resurfacing) that we believe would
ically be borne by the landlord in traditional office leases; and
*80% of our leasing activity during the last twelve months was generated from our existing tenant base. .
Qur primary business objective is to maximize long-term asset value and stockholder returns based on a multifaceted platform
of internal and external growth. Akey element of our stratecz%ws our unique focus on Class A/A+ properties located in collaborative
mega campuses in life science innovation clusters. Our mega campuses are designed for scalability, offering our tenants a clear
path for growth, including through our future developments and redevelopments. Strategically located near top academic medical
institutions and equipped with curated amenities, services, and transit access, our mega campuses are designed to support our tenants
in attracting and retaining top talent, which we believe is a key driver of tenant demand for our properties. Our strategy also includes
drawing upon our deep and broad real estate and life science relationships in order to identify and attract new and leading tenants and
to source additional value-creation real estate.
Executive summary
Qperating results
Three Months Ended September 30,  Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Netincome attributable to Alexandria’s common
stockholders — diluted:
In millions $ 1647 $ 219 §$ 3745 $ 1844
Per share $ 09% $ 013 $ 218 $ 1.08

Funds from operations attributable to Alexandria’s
common stockholders — diluted, as adjusted:

In millions $ 4079 $ 3864 $ 12173 $ 1,1425
Per share $ 237 $ 226 $ 708 $ 6.69

For additional information, refer to “Funds from operations and funds from operations, as adjusted, attributable to Aexandria
Real Estate Equities, Inc.’'s common stockholders” under “Definitions and reconciliations” and to the tabular presentation of these items
in “Results of operations” in ltem 2.
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Continued operational excellence and solid results amid challenqing macroeconomics environment
(As of September 30, 2024, unless stated otherwise)

QOccupancy of operating properties in North America 94.7%
Percentage of annual rental revenue in effect from mega campuses 76%
Percentage of annual rental revenue in effect from investment-grade or publicly traded large cap tenants 53%
Adjusted EBITDAmargin for the three months ended September 30, 2024 70%
Percentage of leases containing annual rent escalations 96%

Weighted-average remaining lease term:
Top 20 tenants 95 years
Al tenants 75 years

Sustained strength in tenant collections:
Tenant receivables as a percentage of rental revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2024 0.9%
October 2024 tenant rents and receivables collected as of the date of this report 99.6%

Tena'?t rents and receivables for the three months ended September 30, 2024 collected as of the date of this ~ 99.9%
repol

Strong and flexible balance sheet with significant liauiditv: too 10% credit ratina rankina among all publicly traded U.S. REITs
As of( E\E ptember 30, 2024. our credit ratings from qudP/s Ratin%s and S&P Global Ratings were %aﬂ and BBB+,
respectively, which rank in the top 10% amon%:a;ll publiclytraded U.S. REITs.

Net debt and preferred stock to Adjusted EBITDA of 5.5xand fixed-charge coverage ratio of 4.4xfor the three months ended
September 30, 2024 annualized.

*Significant liquidity of $5.4 billion,

+31% of our total debt matures in 2049 and beyond.

+12.6 years weighted-average remaining term of debt.

«Since 2020, an average of 97.7% of our debt has been fixed rate.

«Total debt and preferred stock to gross assets of 29%.

+$1.0 billion of capital contribution commitments from exsting consolidated real estate joint venture partners to fund
construction from October 1, 2024 through 2027.

Strong leasing volume and solid rental rates
«Strong leasing volume aggregating 1.5 million RSF for the three months ended September 30, 2024, up 48% compared to our

previous four-quarter average of 1.0 million RSF.
*Rental rate changes on lease renewals and re-leasing of space were 5.1% and 1.5% Scash basis) for the three months ended
S%)tember 30, 2024 and 16.4% and 8.9% (cash bass?for the nine months ended September 30, 2024.
*80% of our leasing activity during the last twelve months was generated from our existing tenant base.
September 30, 2024

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Total leasing activity— RSF 1,486,097 3,742,955
Leasing of development and redevelopment space — RSF 39,121 480,342
Lease renewals and re-leasing of space:
RSF (included in total leasing activity above) 1,278,857 2,863,277
Rental rate changes 5.1% ) 16.4%
Rental rate changes (cash basis) 1.5% ™ 89%

1)Includes a five-year lease extension to an investmerﬂgade rated technology tenant reﬁggng 357,136 RSF of recently acquired tech R&D space in our
exas market that Was renewed with rental rate changes of (33.6)% and (4.8)%{ca.sh basag); These spaces were originally targeted for a future cl in
use at acquisition, but we instead renewed them with a lower al investment while we continue to evaluate options to convert these spaces in the Tuture,
?g e/ct tr%mamz 30/91( oondh ggsls) Excluding this lease, rental rate cl for renewed/re-leased space for the three months ended September 30, 2024 were
.0% and 2.3% (cas is).
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Continued solid net operating income and internal growth

«Total revenue gro

*$791.6 million, up 10.9%, for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to $713.8 million for the three

months ended September 30, 2023.

*$2.3 billion, up 9.3%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to $2.1 billion for the nine months ended

September 30, 2023. ) . ) )

*Net operating income (cash basis) of $2.0 billion for the three months ended September 30, 2024 annualized, increased by

$274.2 million, or 15.5%, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2023 annualized. Refer to "Net operating

income, net operating income (cash basis), and operating margin” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in ltem 2 fora

recongiliation of our netincome to net operating income (cash basis).

*Same propergy net operating income growth

:31 .S‘EA; ar!;d 63% /02 c;g basis) for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the three months ended
eptember 30, .

*1.6% and 4.6% (cash basis) for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the nine months ended

Seg)tember 30, 2023.

*96% of our leases contain contractual annual rent escalations approximating 3%.



Attractivtren div;’dend strategy to share net cash flows from operating activities with stockholders while retaining a significant portion for
reinvestmen

«Common stock dividend declared for the three months ended September 30, 2024 of $1.30 ger common share aggregating

$5.14 per common share for the twelve months ended September 30, 2024, up 24 cents, or 5%, over the twelve months

ended September 30, 2023.

+Dividend yield of 4.4% as of September 30, 2024.

Dividend payout ratio of 55% for the three months ended September 30, 2024.

-Avera?e a(ljnnual dividend per-share growth of 5.4% from 2020 through the three months ended September 30, 2024

annualized.

«Significant net cash flows from operating activities after dividends retained for reinvestment aggregating $2.1 billion for the

%ears ended December 31, 2020 through 2023 and including the midpoint of our 2024 guidance range for net cash provided
operating activities after dividends.

gzoing successful execution of Alexandria’s 2024 capital strategy ) . .

expect to confinue pursuing our strategy fo fund a significant portion of our capital requirements for the year ending
December 31, 2024 with dispositions primarily focused on sales of properties and land parcels not integral to our mega campus
strategy. Refer to “Dispositions” in ltem 2 for additional details.

(in millions)

Completed dispositions of 100% interest in properties $ 319
Pending dispositions subject to non-refundable deposits 577
Pending dispositions subject to executed letters of intent and/or purchase and sale agreement 603
Forward equity sales agreements 28
Total $ 1,527
2024 guidance midpoint for dispositions and common equity $ 1550

«In September 2024, we completed the following transactions with our longstanding tenant, Fred Hutchinson Cancer Center
(“Fred Hutch”), in the Lake Union submarket: ) ) ) -

«Sale of 1165 Eastlake Avenue East, a fullyleased 100,086 RSF smgle-tenant Class At life science facility that was
developed in 2021. We sold the property for $150.0 million, or $1,499 per RSF, at strong capitalization rates of 4.7% and
4.9% (cash basis). Upon completion of the sale, we reoognlzed a gain on sale of real estate aggregating $21.5 million.
+Fred Hutch executed early renewals aq%re?ahn% 117,479 RSF at our 1201 and 1208 Eastlake Avenue East properties,
including a 15-year lease extension at 1201 Eastlake Avenue East.

«Qur prior joint venture partner sold its ownership interest in each of 1201 and 1208 Eastlake Avenue East to Fred Hutch.
Qur ownership interest in both properties remains unchanged at 30.0%. This sale, lease extensions, and new joint venture
affirm Fred Hutch’s commitment to South Lake Union.
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Strong balance sheet management
ey capital metrics as of or for the three months ended September 30, 2024

September 30, 2024 Target for Fourth Quarter of
Quarter Trailing 2024 Annualized
Annualized 12 Months
Net debt and preferred stock to Adjusted EBITDA 5.5x 5.6x Less than or equal to 5.1x
Fixed-charge coverage ratio 4.4x 4.5x Greater than or equal to 4.5x

-%33.1 billion in total market capitalization.
+$20.5 billion in total equity capitalization, which ranks in the top 10% among all publicly traded U.S. REITs.
+As of September 30, 2024, our non-real estate investments aggregated $1.5 billion: o ) .
+Unrealized gains presented in our consolidated balance sheetwere $166.2 million, comprising gross unrealized gains and
losses aggregating $284.4 million and $118.2 million, respectively.
«Investment income of $15.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 presented in our consolidated statement
of operations consisted of $23.0 million of realized gains and $2.6 million of unrealized gains, offset by $10.3 million of
impairment charges. Investment income of $14.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 presented in our
consolidated statement of operations consisted of $85.2 million of realized gains and $32.5 million of unrealized losses, offset
E)e/ $37.8 million of impairment charges.

e‘é capital events o )
«In"September 2024, we amended and restated our unsecured senior line of credit to, among other changes, extend the
maturity date from January 22, 2028 to January 22, 2030, including extension options that we control. .
+During the three months ended September 30, 2024, we had no activity under our ATM g{ogram. As of the date of this report,
the remaining aggregate amount available for future sales of common stock was $1.47 billion.

External growth and investments in real estate
Alexandria’s development and reaevelojgment %igeline delivered incremental annual net oeerating} income of $21 million. commencing
luring the three months ended September and is expected to deliver incremental annual net operating income aggregating

510 million primatri the first quarter of 2028
«During the three months ended éeptember 30, 2024, we placed into service development and redevelopment projects
aggregating 316,691 RSF that are 100% leased across multiple submarkets and delivered incremental annual net operating

income of $21 million. Deliveries during the three months ended September 30, 2024 included 250,000 RSF at 9820
Damestown Road on the Alexandria Center® for Life Science — Shady Grove mega campus in our Rockville submarket.
«Annual net operating income (cash basis) is expected to increase by $57 million upon the burn-off of initial free rent, with a
welghted-avera e burn-off Ferlod of approximately sixmonths, from recenﬂh/wdellvered projects.

*69% of the RSF in our total development and redevelopment pipeline is within our mega campuses.

Development and Redevelopment Projects Incremental RSF Leased/,
Annual Net Negotiating
Operating Income Percentage

(dollars in millions)
Placed into senvice:

Sixmonths ended June 30, 2024 $ 42 628,427 100%

Three months ended September 30, 2024 21 316,691 100

Total placed into senvice during nine months ended September 30,2024 §$ 63 945118 _100%

Expected to be placed into senice():

Fourth quarter of 2024 through fourth quarter of 2025 $ 158 (@ 5467,897 55%

First quarter of 2026 through first quarter of 2028 352 ()
$ 510

(1)Represents e){pected incremental annual

; operating income to be placed into service from deliveries of projects undergoing construction and one committed
near-tem

net
oject expected to commence construction in the next two years. o N K e
%ﬂcludes (i) 1.0 million RSF that is expected to stabilize through and is 92% Ieased_/gotlatlng and (i) expected partial deliveries throéxf;h fourth quarter of
5 from pm{ects expected to stabilize in 2026 and beyond. Reéfer to the initial and stabilized occupancy years under “New Class A/A+ dev elopment and
redev elopmen properﬁzsc current projects” in Item 2 for additional details.



(3)70% of the leased RSF of our development and redevelopment projects was generated from our existing tenant base.
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ALEXANDRIA’S HIGHLY Buting e
IMPACTFUL CORPORATE B AL

RESPONSIBILITY PILLARS

F
- ; . = Supportin
Developing and implementing collaborative ouffnilitafy
and innovative solutions to some of the . e
= { § . - - - . 3 .
nation's most pressing Chal lenges “The H i’éoundaﬁon and their Gradtlét‘és}ft\he Emily K
rters in San Diego, CA families Center in Durham, NC

EXANDRIA.

Future National Medal of Honor
Museum in Arlington, TX

T Inspiring future
generations with the
stories and values of
our nation’s heroes

Former Congressman Patrick Kennedy atthe
Alexandria Summit® on Mental Health'in 2023

OneFifteen campus in Dayton, OH

- tad Vi ¥

Accelerating T Prioritizing the T Revolutionizing

medical innovation mental health addiction «—

to save lives crisis treatment Approaching
homelessness as a
healthcare problem,

not a housing issue
Harnessing agtech

to combat hunger

and improve

nutrition
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Operating summary



Same Property Net Rental Rate Growth:

Operating Income Growth Renewed/Re-Leased Space
Margins(1) Favorable Lease Structure()
i i Strategic Lease Structure by Ow d
Operating Adjusted EBITDA Q:';erg?c;(r: o? %?)?Iabgl:atit:l?mgga Cnaer:lgases
0 0 Increasing cash flows
Percentage of leases containing annual
; 1 A) ; O A) rent escalatons T 96%
Stable cash flows
Weighted-Average Lease Term Percentage of triple 0
of Executed Leases) netleases 93%
Lower capex burden

Percentage of leases providing for the 9 2 o/o

8 8 ye a rS recapture of capital expenditures

Net Debt and Preferred Stock Fixed-Charge Coverage Ratio)
to Adjusted EBITDA4)
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Stable Cash Flows From Our High-Quality and Diverse Mix of
Approximately 800 Tenants

Investment-Grade or Publicly Traded
Large Cap Tenants

92%

of ARE’s Top 20 Tenant
Annual Rental Revenue

53%

of ARE’s Annual

Percentage of ARE’s Rental Revenue

Annual Rental Revenue

Solid Historical Occupancy of 96% Over Past 10 Years®® From
Historically Strong Demand for Our Class A/A+ Properties in AAA Locations

Mega Campuses Occupancy Across Key Locations

Percentage of ARE’s
Annual Rental Revenue



North  Greater ~ San San Seattle Maryland Research  New Texas
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Long-Duration and Stable Cash Flows From
High-Quality and Diverse Tenants

Long-Duration Lease Terms

9.5 Years

Top 20 Tenants

7.5 Years

All Tenants
Weighted-Average Remaining Term(1)

Sustained Strength in Tenant Collections(2)

99.9%

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2024

99.6%

October 2024

1 on annual rental revenue in effect as of September 30, 2024. .
2)Represents the portion of total receivables billed for each period collected through the date of this report.
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Leasing Activi%
e following fable summarizes our leasing activity at our properties:



Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended

Septerrber 30, 2024 Septerrber 30, 2024 Decenber 31, 2023
Including Cash Basis Including CashBasis  Including Cash Basis
Straight-Line Rent Straight-Line Rent Straight-Line Rent
(Dollars per RSF)
Leasing activity:
Renew ed/re-leased spaceu)
Rental rate changes 51% @ 1.5% @ 16.4% 8.9% 29.4% 15.8%
New rates $56.60 $55.77 $63.43 $62.39 $52.35 $50.82
Expiring rates $53.86 $54.95 $54.47 $57.28 $40.46 $43.87
RSF 1,278,857 2,863,277 3,046,386
Tenant improverents/ $4373 $33.92 $26.09
leasing commissions
}Naghted—average lease 9.7 years 8.7 years 8.7 years
erm
Developed/redeveloped/
r)revnously vacant space
New rates $52.66 $52.18 $64.59 $62.90 $65.66 $59.74
RSF 207,240 879,678 © 1,259,686
YVeighted-average lease 10.6 years 8.1 years 13.8 years
erm
Leasing activity summa
(totals): ¥ &4
New rates $56.05 $55.27 $63.69 $62.50 $56.09 $53.33
RSF 1,486,097 3,742,955 4,306,072
}Neigmed—average lease 9.8 years 8.6 years 11.3 years
erm
Lease expirations
Expiring rates $51.62 $53.17 $52.01 $54.40 $43.84 $45.20
RSF 1,500,213 3,801,559 5,027,773
Leasing activity includes 100% of results for ies in North America in which we have an |nv55tment
(1)Excludes month-to- month Ieases aggregat ,698 RSF and 86,092 RSF as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectlvelgewbmhto-m\th leases
adgregating 355,698 RSF Seﬁé 2024 include 226,144 RSF in our University Town Center submarket related t ?ora ly held over
by an expiring tenant at bulldl are targeted for the future development of Iaboratory space SLbject to marke oondl ions and Ieasmg Dunng the trailing twelve
ember 30, , wWe reere'ltoonc&ssmns averr§| mmthsper
gZ)IncIud&s a flve-year lease extension 1o an investment 0%1% regatlng 357 136 RSF of recently acquired tech R&D space in our Texas market
hat renewed with rental rate char of (33.6)% and 4.8) % cash basis). paces were Ori |na||y targeted for a future change in use at acquisition, but we
nstead renewed them with a lower capital investment while we contlnue to evaluate options to convert these spac&s in the future, subject to market condmons Excludlng
th|s lease, rental rate changes for renewed/re-leased s were 13.0% and 2. 3%(cash basis forthree months ended September 30, 2024, Rental rate

expenence vdaﬂhty fi romng?grter to quarter based on {he volume and mix of leases executed. Refer to “Projected results” in Item 2 for rental rate changes expecr{gfrom
leases executed for the year erx:lmgnd ember 31, 20Q

g?:)lncludes tenant mprovement r\% ions related to a 10.5-year extension of a recently acquired lease ag%?tmg 85,019 RSF in our Fenway submarket
0an mvestmen( rade academlc institution. Excludlng this lease, tenant improvements and leasing oommnssnons for the three and nine months ended
Seg ember 30, 233 nd $28.85, respectively, which are consistent with the five-year quarterly average of
; efer to NewCIass A devdopment and redevelopment ies: summary of pipelin€” in Item 2 for additional i ormatlon |nc|ud|ng total project costs.
S}Includ% the five-year extension of 171,102 RSF at our 41 pus Point Colrrt property in San Diego, a fully leased development project expected fo deliver during the
ourth quarter of 2024.
54 . .
Summary of contractual lease ezﬁlratuons o .
e following table summarizes the contractual lease expirations at our properties as of September 30, 2024:
Year RSF Fércente‘a?e of nnual Rental Revenue rcel of
COccupied RSF (per RSF)m) Annual Rental Revenue

2024 @ 518,665 1.4% $ 69.19 1.7%

2025 3,785,573 10.0% $ 49.64 8.8%

2026 2,714,170 71% $ 5321 6.7%

2027 3,242,737 8.5% $ 51.87 7.9%

2028 4,332,150 11.4% $ 51.78 10.5%

2029 2,437,921 6.4% $ 51.25 5.8%

2030 3,135,445 8.3% $ 43.25 6.3%

2031 3,425,338 9.0% $ 55.11 8.8%

2032 1,093,311 2.9% $ 59.53 3.0%

2033 2,772,455 7.3% $ 50.81 6.6%
Thereafter 10,541,840 27.7% $ 68.66 33.9%
(%ont ual lease expirati effec{mpml% ClaSSIfIBd as held for sale as of September 30, 2024 are excluded from the information on this page.

s in

S }Repres ents amount:
2)Excludes month-to-month leases aggregatlng 355 698 RSF as of September 30, 2024.
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'2I'8<29 ‘{gllowing tables present our lease expirations by market for the remainder of 2024 and for 2025 as of September 30,
' 2024 Contractual Lease Expirations (in RSF)

Market Leased Rﬁ%@f?at{?r% Targeted nze%rtﬁﬂlag{a?/ cloprrents ?&ﬁ%ng Totale) %\VRELE
%a%?ﬁv ' Future (per RSF)»)
Friority Anticipated
Greater Boston 73,614 21,621 — 104,500 80,788 @ 280523 § 86.07
San Francisco Bay Area 12,847 13,943 107,250 — 14,682 148,722 49.58
San Diego 27,119 - — — 17,408 44,527 55.30
Seattle — — — — 3,652 3,652 NA
Maryland = = = = 182 182 NA
Research Triangle 10,478 — — — 8,202 18,680 28.31
New York Gty = = = = 9,058 9,058 109.57
Texas — — — — — — —
Canada 13,321 = = = = 13,321 26.54
Non-cluster/other markets — — — — — — —
Total 137,379 35,564 107,250 104,500 133972 518665 § 69.19
Percentage of expiring leases  26% % 2% 20% %% 100%
2025 Contractual Lease Expirations (in RSF) %\r)ual Rental
Market Leased |C|t;l%tlt?r% 'Ié(/ge(t)%d rT{ecgtlFuture %{;ﬁ%ng Total (per RSP
Redevelopments)  Leasese)
Greater Boston 172,446 145,715 25312 659,355 @ — 1002828 § 7613
San Francisco Bay Area 72,162 247,827 — 547,092 867,081 51.33
San Diego 83,546 = 269,048 260,627 613,221 2298
Seattle — — — 196,419 196,419 25.10
Maryland 35,055 6,926 — 151,958 193,939 2751
Research Triangle — — — 306,916 306,916 51.16
New York Gty = 13,273 = 54,966 68,239 105.86
Texas — — 198,972 247,246 446,218 40.09
Canada = = = 88,412 88,412 20.28
Non-cluster/other markets — — — 2,300 2,300 40.17
Total 363,209 413,741 493,332 2,515,291 3,785,573 $ 49.64
Percentage of expiring leases 10% 1% 13% 66% 100%
Contractual lease Zf‘?lratlons at properties classified as held for sale as of September 30, 2024 are excluded from the information on this
(1 Fhmanly represents assets that were recently acquired for future devel and redevelopment opportunities, for which we expect sullesct to market conditions and
leasi imence first-time conversion from non-laboratory space to %re/ spaoe or to commence future ground-up devel ember 30, 2024,
annua rental revenue, from these leases expiring in 2024, |ncl%gg 226,144 RSF o-month leases in our University Town Center submarket primarily re‘ated to
space bemgo2 2(}éhe|d over by an expiring tenant, and $20.9 million and $17 5 million, respectivel ){ weighted-av expiration date of these leas
p| 4 and 2025 is October 4 and January 10, 2025, r%pecilvely Refer to “Investments in real estate’ under “Defini and reconciliations” in Item 2

tional details, includi de'vei orgment square feet cunentlg&ncluded in rental properties.
g 1Exclud$ nmht?-nnmgff?tses S;ro%etatl 35%0698 as of September 30, 2024, Refer to “Leasing Activity” in Item 2 for additional details.
e?res 'S amounts in as
(4)Includes 41 908 RSF and 210 868 RSF expinng in 2024 ard 2025, respectively, related to properties that are under executed letters of intent and/or purchase and sale
5f adthppmxl oxim | ly 95% of the 2025 remaining expiring leases in er Boston are located in our Cambridge/Inner Suburbs submarket. Refer
e or additional details.
&2 udes 768,080 RSF in four submarkets with a weighted-average expiration date of January 21, 2025 and annual rental revenue approximately
7 million, with our share of this annual rental rev enue aggregating $35 million, comprising the following: (i) existing laboratory spaces Tor whlc we are evaluating
options to re-Iease or |t|on from smﬁle tenancy to multi-tenancy that will remain in our same y pool at Alexandria Techrology Square” in our Cambridge
submarket for 182, SF and at 409 ITlinois St where we have an ownershi |nterest of 25.0%, in our Mssion submarket for 234,249 RSF (we are in early
discussions with a tenant to lease appmxm\ately 50°o of this space); and (ii) non-al or¥] space for which we are evaluating options to re-lease lly in their
current condition, reposition, or, sus%ect 0 market conditions, may ndergo a conversion h redev el in our Austin submarket for 247, 46 RSF and in our
Research Triangle market for 104,531 RSF. Should we commence redev lopment efforts, h%e properties would be placed into our active g?ehne and removed from
ours;ﬁavpropen b‘e)gd otherwise, they would remain in our same property pool. We expect downtime on the 768,080 RSF to range from 12 fo 24 months on a
erage basis.
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Top 20 tenants
o of Top 20 Tenant Annual Rental Revenue Is From Investment-Grade
or Publicly Traded Large Cap Tenants(1)
Qur properties are leased to a hlﬁ;h-quah and diverse group of tenants, with no individual tenant accounting for more than 5.8%
of our annual rental revenue in effect as of September 30, 2024. The followmg table sets forth information regarding leases with our 20
largest tenants in North America based upon annual rental revenue in effect as of September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands, except
average market cap amounts):



Remainin: Agaregate Annual Percentageof  Investnent-Grade  Avera
Lease < Fégegat Rent

tal Annual Rental ~ Credit Ratings IVarket
Termn Revenuer) Revenue ) Cap .
Tenant (inYears) Woods P (inbillions)
1 Mbderna, Inc. 126 T 1385678 § 127,387 58% = = $  3B/6
2 Hililly and Conpany 82 1,166,754 HI814 43 A1 A+ $ 7124
3 Bristo-Myers Squibb Conpany 64 999,379 76,363 3.5 A2 A $ 9.1
4 Takeda Pharmaceutical Conrpany Lirrited 10.7 549,759 47899 22 Baa1 BBB+ § 445
5 Roche 6.7 770,279 47,104 22 Aa2 AA $ 22078
6 llumina, Inc. 74 857,967 35362 1.6 Baa3 BBB $ 19.7
7 Alphabet Inc. 31 625,015 34899 16 Aa2 AA+ $ 19163
8 2seventy bio, Inc.e) 89 312,805 33543 15 — — $ 0.2
9 Novartis AG 38 450,664 3099 14 Aa3 AA- $ 2318
10  United States Governnent 59 429,359 28593 1.3 Aaa AA+ $ —
11 COoud Software Group, Inc. 24 o 292,013 28537 13 — = $ =
12 Woer Technologies, Inc. 580 @ 1,009,188 27,776 1.3 Baa2 BBB- $ 1371
13 AstraZenecaPL.C 51 450,848 27156 1.2 A2 A+ $ 2228
14 Harvard University 72 343,858 27,084 1.2 Aaa AAA $ —
15 The Regents of the University of 6.6 372,647 23670 1.1 Aa2 AA $ —
California
16  Sancfi 6.3 267,278 21,444 1.0 A1 AA $ 1266
17 Merck & Co., Inc. 88 337,703 21,401 1.0 A1 A+ $ 3008
18 Amgen Inc. 8.3 428,227 21,314 1.0 Baa1 BBB+ $ 159.2
19 New York University 74 218,983 21,056 1.0 Aa2 AA- $ =
20 Massachusetts Institute of Technology 47 246,725 20527 09 Aaa AAA $ —
Total/w eighted-average __ 95 @ 11515129 $ 796,898 36.4%
A e O et O o T e Sl o A e o e e S e e
ing our methodologies of calculating annual rental revenue from unconsoli

t S
gatejoint ventures and average market capltallzatlon r&spedlv
1}!26asedma1mal rental revememeffec as of Septemt A,

2)As of June 30, 2024, 2seventy bio, Inc. held $201. 9m||||oncf cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities. In Nbrch 2024, Regeneron Pharmacetticals, Inc., a

blicly traded biotechnol th investment-grade credit ratings of Baa1 and BBB+ assigned by Moody’s and S&P, vely . entered into a sublease for
gupprox¥ imately 195,000 Rggy g 8‘%’ of our annual ren_t%I revenue ngsedf rom 2seventy bIO as of Slg)tember 30, 2024. /iddtgr}lcally .2% of the annual rental
ed by 2seventy bio is guaranteed by another related public biotechnol

(S)Oonsnsis of one lease at a property acquired in \Mth future development and r%v elopment opportunities. This lease with Cloud Software Group, Inc. (formery known
as TIBCO Software, Inc.) was in place when we ao% lregopert
(4)Includes %round leases for land at 1455 and 1 15 Third Street (‘{wo buildings regatlng 422,980 RSF) and (ii) leases at 1655 and 1725 Third Street (two bunldlngs
ing 586,208 RSF) in our Mssmn submarket owned by our unconsolidated real estate joint venture in'which we have an ownership interest of 10%. An
al revenue is presented using 100% of the annual rental revenue from our consolidated ies and our share of annual rental revenue from ou unoonsohdated real
estate joint ventures. Excluding e ground leases, the weighted-av erage remaining lease term for our top 20 tenants was 7.8 years as of September 30, 2024.
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Locations of properties
e [ocations of our properties are diversified amongf a number of Class A/A+ assets strategically clustered in mega campuses
in AAAllife science innovation cluster markets. The following table sets forth the total RSF, number of properties, and annual rental
revenue in effect as of Se I:"gtember 30, 2024 in each of our markets in North America (dollars in thousands, exoept per RSF amounts):
Number of - Annual Rental Revenue

Market Operating  Development Redevelopment Total % of Total Properties Total % of Total Per RSF
Greater Boston 10,352,695 764,036 1,762,974 ) 12,879,705 28% 72 $ 833562 38% $ 85.09
San Francisco Bay Area 7,784,590 498,142 259,689 8,542,421 18 65 432,102 20 63.54
San Diego 7,673,315 1,186,104 — 8,859,419 19 87 330,596 15 44.90
Seattle 3,108,593 227,577 34,306 3,370,476 7 45 137,044 6 47.78
Maryland 3,819,512 29,890 — 3,849,402 8 50 145,847 7 40.12
Research Triangle 3,770,927 — — 3,770,927 8 38 116,318 5 31.64
New York City 921,686 — — 921,686 2 4 72439 3 92.37
Texas 1,845,159 — 73,298 1,918,457 4 15 54,958 3 31.19
Canada 887,737 — 139,311 1,027,048 2 11 19,790 1 23.33
Non-cluster/other markets 347,806 — — 347,806 1 10 14,623 1 57.76
Properties held for sale 1,261,387 — — 1,261,387 3 9 26,796 1 NA

North America 41,773,407 2,705,749 2,269,578 46,748,734 100% 406 $2,184,075 100% $ 57.09

T 4975327
¥ )Pnn'\aglcyI elnrgleuges ourza arﬁlxgégdce\a/e!opnarh'\tlsprqects aggregatpl&g&?p?dsgd 81104&‘% reancl 60 .'X%&Ré’g‘ﬁn SquB&‘s% mtr?(r Street located on the Alexandria Center”

Summary of occupancy %ercentages in North America
e following table sefs forth the occupancy percentages for our operatm% properties and our operating and redevelopment

properties in each of our North America markets, excluding properties held for sale, as of the following dates:

Operating Properties Operatlng and Redevelopment Properties
Market 9/30/24 6/30/24 9/30/23 9/30/24 6/30/24 9/30/23
Greater Boston 94.6% 94.2% 93.2% 80.9% 81.7% 83.3%
San Francisco Bay Area 941 94.0 95.3 91.1 90.7 91.9
San Diego 96.0 95.1 90.9 96.0 95.1 90.9
Seattle 923 o 947 95.1 91.3 93.7 90.3
Maryland 96.2 96.5 96.6 96.2 96.5 96.6
Research Triangle 97.5 97.4 96.9 97.5 97.4 96.9
New York City 85.1 @ 85.1 89.4 85.1 85.1 89.4
Texas 95.5 95.5 95.1 91.8 91.8 915
Subtotal 94.9 A7 939 90.0 90.2 89.9
Canada 95.5 94.9 88.9 82.6 825 757
Non-cluster/other markets 72.8 756 80.5 72.8 75.6 80.5
North America 94.7% 94.6% 93.7% 89.7% 89.9% 89.4%
&Declme in mcm orryelzsatpfc éoshhgm Wemm in our Bothell submarket that is expected to

(2)The Alexandria Center” for Life Science — New York City mega campus is 95.3% occupied as of September 30, 2024. Occupancy percentage in our New York City
market reflects vacancy at the Alexandria Center” for Life Science — Long Island City property, which wes 42.8% occupied as of September 30, 2024.
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Investments in real estate . o . .

Akey component of our business model is our disciplined allocation of capital to the development and redevelopment of new

Class A/A+ properties, and property enhancements identified during the underwriting of certain acquired properties, located in
collaborative mega campuses in AMAlife science innovation clusters. These projects are focused on providing high-quality, generic, and
reusable spaces that meet the real estate requirements of a wide range of tenants. Upon completion, each development and
redevelopment project is expected to generate increases in rental income, net operating income, and cash flows. Our development and
redevelopment projects are generallyin locations that are hi%hl desirable to h(iigh—qual%/entities, which we believe results in higher
occupancy levels, longer lease terms, higher rental income, higher returns, and greater long-term asset value. Our pre-construction
activities are undertaken in order to prepare the property for its intended use and include entittements, permitting, design, site work, and
other activities greoeding commencement of construction of aboveground building improvements.

Qur investments in real estate consisted of the following as of September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):
Development and Redevelopment
Active and Near-Term Future Qpportunities Subject to
Construction Market Conditionsand Leasing
Operating  Under Committed  Priority Future Subtotal Total

Congtruction  Near Tem Anticipated
55% Leased/  51% Leased/
Negotiating ~ Negotiatingm

Square footage

Operating 40,512,020 — — — — — 40,512,020
New Class A/A+ development and — 4,975,327 492,570 2,163,784 27,582,766 35214447 35,214,447
redevelopment properties

Future development and redevelopment — — (159,884)  (258,596) (2,957,559) (3,376,039) (3,376,039)
square feet cumently included in rental

propertiesz)

'rllgtglf(s)?glrg footage, excluding properties 40,512,020 4,975,327 332,686 1,905,188 24,625,207 31,838,408 72,350,428
Properties held for sale 1,261,387 — — — — — 1,261,387
Total square footage 41,773,407 4,975,327 332,686 1,905,188 24,625,207 31,838,408 73,611,815 (3
Investments in real estate

Gross book value as of September 30, $29,235994 $ 4335573 $ 69,521 $ 578694 $ 4,356,637 $9,340425 $ 38,576,419

2024

1 R:Presents one committed near-term prlgee'ct [;eé(foemed to commence construction during the next two years after Sefptember 30, 2024.
2)Refer to “Investments in real estate” ur “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional details, including future development and redev elopment square feet
currently included in rental properties.

#3)We expect to continue pursuing our straie%/ tofund a sig[nificant portion of our crgPital requirements for the year ending December 31, 2024 with dispositions primarily
ocused on sales of properties and land parcéls not int [0 OUr mega campus strategy. X i » .
(4)Balances exclude accumulated depreciation and our share of the cost basis associated with our Wls held by our unconsolidated real estate joint ventures, which is
classified as investments in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures in our consolidated balance sheets.
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%uisitions
r real estate asset acquisitions during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and pending as of the date of this report consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):



Property Submarket/Market Date of &grating Square Footage
P(opem&s

Rurchase upanc!
pancy Future Operating With Future ~ Purchase Price
Development) Developrrent/
Redevelopment)
Conpleted during the nine months ended Septenrber 30, 2024:
285, 299, 307, and 345 Dorchester Avenue (60% interest in Seaport Innovation District/ 1/30/24 — NA 1,040,000 — $ 155,321
consolidated JV)c) Greater Boston
Other 46,490
201,811
Conrpleted in October 2024:
428 \Westlake Avenue North Lake Union/Seattle 10/1/24 1 100% — 88,514 47,600
$ 249411
2024 guidance range for acquisitions $250,000 — $750,000
E ;We exPect to provide total estimated costs and related yields for devel and significant redevel projects in the future, subsequent to the commencement of construction.
2)Refer to Note 4 — “Consolidated and unconsolidated real estate joint ventures” to our Unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1 for additional details.
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Dispositions
th r comé) e)}ted dispositions of real estate assets during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and pending as of the date of this report consisted of the following (dollars in
ousands
Property Submarket/Market Date of Interest RSF Cat)ltallzatlon Cai)ltallzatlon Sales Price Sales Price
Sold per RSF

Sale
(Cash Basis)

Conmpleted during the six nonths ended June 30, 2024:
Dispositions of 100% interest in properties not integral to our mega campus strategy

99 A Street) Seaport Innovation District/ 3/8/24 100% 235000 NA NA $ 13,350 NA
Greater Boston
Other 3,863
17,213
Conrpleted during the three months ended Septenrber 30, 2024:
Sale to longstanding tenant
1165 Eastlake Avenue East Lake Unior/Seattle 912/24 100% 100,086 4.7% 4.9% 149985 @ $ 1,499
Dispositions of properties not integral to our mega campus strategy
219 East 42nd Street New York Gty/New York Gty  7/9/24 100% 349947 NA NA 60,000 ® NA
Other 11,511
221,4% @
Dispositions conpleted during the nine months ended Septenrber 30, 2024 238,709
Conrpleted in October 2024:
Dispositions of properties not integral to our mega campus strategy
14225 New brook Drive Northern Virginia/Maryland 10/15/24  100% 248186 7.6% 74% 80,500 & $ 324
319,209
Pending dispositions for the fourth quarter of 2024 subsequent to the date of this report:
Subject to non-refundable deposits
Sale to longstanding tenant Greater Boston 424 100% 8.5% 6.3% 369,439 ®©
Other 207,713
577,152
Subject to executed letters of intent and/or purchase and sale 602,500 ®©
agréements
1,179,652
1,498,861
2024 guidance range for dispositions and conmon equity $1,050,000 — $2,050,000
1)We completed the sale during the three months ended March 31, 2024 and recognized no gain or loss. Refer to Note 3 —“Investments in real estate” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1 for additional information.
§2§Upon completion of the sale, we recognized a gain on sale of real estate agg hg $21 mlhon during the three months ended September
Lhmeld Ieased to a smgle tena&tqwtrg&f%gg%la ratlon net operating income of $18.6 million based on three months ended June 30, 2024 annualized. This property was previously considered to be a
E?Dis sitions compl dunng the tf? ended Septem 0%2 had annual net operating income of $26.5 million (based on three months ended June 30, 2024 annualized) with a weighted-av erage disposition date of July 28,
Q4Pm%|sgh‘l net operating income ortheth lhsendedJune30 2024 annualized).
(5 onstrating the long-term enduring value of our laboratory facilities, Alexandria successfully operated our only asset in the Northem Virginia submarket from its acquisition in 1997 (prior to our IPO) through its sale in October 2024. Upon
completion of the sale, we recognized a gain on sale of real estate ggatmg $37.1 million.
6)Refer to Note 16 — "Subsequent events” to our unaudlted consoli financial statements in Item 1 for additional information
E7Pend ling dispositions subsequent to the date of this repon hav e estimated annual net operating income of approximately $95 8 million (based on three months ended September 30, 2024 annualized) with a weighted-av estimated
dlsposmon date of December 5, 2024 (weighted by net operating income for the three months ended September 30, 2024 annualized). Approximately half of our pending dispositions are non-core stabilized stand-alone ies with

eraﬁe italization rates o& g"/ and 7.0% (cash basis), and the remaining half are land and non-stabilized ies that havevacanc or significant near-term lease expirations that will require capital to re-tenant, includi
one bulldlng Caummely 72% of non-lgibor atory s E glace ) "9 propert Yy g P eql i ing



ALEXANDRIA’'S FUTURE GROWTH IN
ANNUAL NET OPERATING INCOME FROM
DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT DELIVERIES

$510 MILLION
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New Class A/A+ development and redevelopment properties: recent deliveries

acon Street an eway Boulevar 1150 Eastlake Avenue East
4 Kingsbury Avenuen)
Greater Boston/ San Francisco Bay Area/ Seattle/Lake Union
Canrbridge/Inner Suburbs South San Francisco
138,537 RSF 67,017 RSF 311,631 RSF
100% Occupancy 100% Occupancy 100% Occupancy

9810 Darnestown Road 9820 Darnestown Road 9808 Medical Center Drive
Maryland/Rockville Maryland/Rockville Maryland/Rockville

195,435 RSF 250,000 RSF 65,171 RSF

100% Occupancy 100% Occupancy 100% Occupancy

(1)Image represents 500 North Beacon Street on The Arsenal on the Charles mega campus.
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New Class A/A+ development and redevelopment proFertles recent deliveries Soontinued) . . . . .
e following table presents development and redevelopment of new Class projects placed into senice during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 (dollars in

housands):
tIncremental Annual Net Operating Income Generated From YTD 3Q24 Deliveries
Aggregated $63 Million, Includlng $21 Million in 3Q24

Property/Market/Submarket Dhtery OJvnershlp RSF Placed in Service %pﬁ %y Total Project Unlevered Yields

Date Priorto  1Q24 224 324 Total Initial Initial

" Interest 11124 __ &Bived Sbilized
RSF Investment (Cash Basis)
Development projects
%9 neorogllij%%e b/;venue/G'eater Boston/Canbridge/  NA 75.0% 43568 72,846 — — 116414 100% 320,809 $ 468,000 7.1% 7.0%
I

500 North Beacon Street and 4 Nn%?ury Avenue/ NA 100% — 100624 37,913 — 138,537 100% 248,018 427,000 62 55
Greater Boston/Cantbridge/inner Sul
1150 Eastlake Avenue East/Seattle/Lake Union 7/16/24  100% 278,282 — 2079 31,270 311,631 100% 311,631 442,000 66 6.7
9810 Darnestow n Road/Maryland/Rockville NA 100% — — 195435 — 195435 100% 195,435 135000 7.1 6.2
9820 Darnestow n Road/Maryland/Rockville 8/21/24  100% — — — 250,000 250,000 100% 250,000 177,000 87 5.6
9808 Medical Center Drive/Maryland/Rockville 7/25/24  100% 26,460 — 25655 13,056 65,171 100% 95,061 115000 54 54
Redevelopment projects
651 Gateway Boulevard/San Francisco Bay Area/ 7/12/24  50.0% — 44,652 — 22365 67,017 100% 326,706 487,000 5.0 51
South San Francisco
Alexandria Centere for Advanced Techndogles - NA 100% 65086 115,598 = — 180,684 100% 460,934 229,000 6.3 6.2
Monte Villa Parkw ay/Seattle/Bothell
Canada NA 100% 44,862 9725 23,900 — 78,487 100% 250,790 113,000 64 6.3
Weighted averageftotal 8/11/24 458258 343445 284,982 316,691 1,403,376 2459384 $2593000 64% 6.0%

1)Represents the av deliv dalefordellvmestl‘etoccma tl‘ethreemonth_smﬁpt ber 30, 2024, weighted by annudl rental revente.
EZ;OSCLWICy relates to total opgrryatlng RSF placed in service as of the nn%s t recent delivery. <

64
New Class A/A+ development and redeveIoPment properties: current projects
olidge Avenue con Street an Arsenal Street 201 Brookline Avenue 401 Park Drive

4 Nngsbury Avenue
Greater Bos Great ton/ Greater Boston/ Greater Boston/Fenway Greater Boston/Fenway
r'rbndge/hner Suburbs Ganbridge/lnner Suburbs Canrbridge/Inner Suburbs
204,395 RSF 109,481 RSF 308,446 RSF 58,149 RSF 159,959 RSF
40% Leased/Negotiating 92% Leased 21% Leased 100% Leased 14% Leased
o

421 Park Drive 40, 50, and 60 Sylvan Road) 840 Winter Street 1450 Owens Streets) 651 Gateway Boulevard

Greater Boston/Fenway Greater Bostor/Route 128 Greater Boston/Route 128 San Francisco Bay Area/ San Francisco Bay Area/
Mssion Bay South San Francisco

392,011 RSF 596,064 RSF 139,680 RSF 212,796 RSF 259,689 RSF

13% Leased 31% Leased 100% Leased —% Leased/Negotiating 25% Leased/Negotiating

(1)Image represents 500 North Beacon Street on The Arsenal on the Charles mega campus.
( )Inrage represents 60 Sylvan Road on the Alexandria Center® for Life Science — Waltham mega campus The project is expected to capture demand in our Route 128 submarket.
n‘ag?‘e represents a multi-tenant project expanding our existing Alexandria Center” for Science and neggty — Mssion Bay our joint ventureopartrer will fund 100% of the construction cost until it attains an
I property.

interest of 75%, after which it will contribute its respective share of additional capital. We are in iations with a b| cal institution for the'sale of a 50% condominium interest in this
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New Class A/A+ development and redevelopment properties: current projects (continued

rriet Tubman 3 an us Point Court 4155 Campus Point Court
Alexandria Waym P P
San Francisco Bay Area/ San Diego/Torrey Fines San Di San Di
South San Francisco University Town Center University Town Center
285,346 RSF 334,996 RSF 426,927 RSF 171,102 RSF

100% Leased 100% Leased 100% Leased 100% Leased

10075 Barnes Canyon Road 701 Dexter Avenue Northe) Alexandria Centere for Advanced 9808 Medical Center Drive 8800 Technology Forest Place
Technologies —Monte Villa Parkway
@)

San Diego/Sorrento Mesa Seattle/Lake Union Seattle/Bothell Maryland/Rockville Texas/Greater Houston

253,079 RSF 227,577 RSF 34,306 RSF 29,890 RSF 73,298 RSF

70% Leased

98% Leased 76% Leased/Negotiating 41% Leased

E1;Inrage reﬁ)mmt s 10955 Alexandria Way on the One Alexandria Square mega campus.
2)We m%eyhas\t/arted this ;fxqed due to strong demand from neighboring tenants but strategically paused in the flrst er of 2023. We have resumed construction activities at this project in order to maintain our existing ermtlementszs3 and
interest from v

ive tenants, including from multinational ical companies. ond this e-built life science asset, there is no competitive supply expected to be delivered in'2025
make Union submarket. As of Septenrberped2024 we are 95. 3°/r°\g occupied in our Lakemm\am pan purpos el PPl expect
(3)image represents 3755 Monte Villa Parkway .
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New Class A/A+ deveIoFment and redevelopment progertles current projects (oontlnued}
The following tables set forth a summary of our new Class A/A+ development and redevelopment properties under construction and pre-leased/negotiating near-term projects as of

September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):



Property/Market/Submarket Square Footage Percentage Occupancy

Dev/Redev 1n Service CIP Total Leased Leased/ Initial Stabilized
Negotiating
Under construction
2024 and 2025 stabilization
500 North Beacon Street and 4 Kingsbury Avenue/Greater Boston/ Dev 138,537 109,481 248,018 92% 92% 124 2025
Cambridge/inner Suburbs
201 Brookline Avenue/Greater Boston/Fenway Dev 451,967 58,149 510,116 100 100 3022 lerZ)
840 Winter Street/Greater Boston/Route 128 Redev 28,534 139,680 168,214 100 100 424 2025
230 Harriet Tubmen Way/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisco Dev — 285,346 285346 100 100 125 1025
4155 Canpus Point Court/San Diego/University Town Center Dev — 171,102 171,102 100 100 424 4024
Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies — Monte Villa Parkw ay/Seattle/Bothell  Redev 426,628 34,306 460,934 98 98 1Q23 424
9808 Medical Center Drive/Meryland/Rockville Dev 65,171 29,890 95,061 69 76 3023 4024
8800 Technology Forest Face/Texas/Greater Houston Redev 50,094 73,298 123392 41 M 2023 2025
Canada Redev 111,479 139,311 250,790 73 73 3023 2025
1,272,410 1,040,563 2312973 91 92
2026 and beyond stabilization
One Hanpshire Street/Greater Boston/Cantbridge Redev — 104,956 104,956 — — 2027 2028
311 Arsenal Street/Greater Boston/Canrbridge/Inner Suburbs Redev 82216 @ 308,446 390,662 21 21 2027 2027
99 Coolidge Avenue/Greater Boston/Camrbridge/Inner Suburbs Dev 116,414 204,395 320,809 40 40 4Q23 2026
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New Class A/At+ development and redevelopment properties: current projects (continued)
r . At100% Unlevered Yields
Property/Market/Submarket Ownership e e P Cost to Total at _ Tnitial_ Initial Stabjlized
Interest Complete Completion Stabilized  (Cash Basis)

Under construction
2024 and 2025 stabilization
500 North Beacon Street and 4 Kingsbury Avenue/Greater Boston/ 100% $ 284645 $ 115506 $ 26,849 $ 427,000 6.2% 5.5%
Canrbridge/Inner Suburbs
201 Brookline Avenue/Greater Boston/Fenway 99.0% 665,877 91,610 17,513 775,000 7.2% 6.5%
840 Winter Street/Greater Boston/Route 128 100% 13,653 187,366 35,981 237,000 7.6% 6.5%
230 Harriet Tubrman Way/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisco 47.9% — 350,231 159,769 510,000 74% 6.4%
4155 Canpus Point Court/San Diego/University Town Center 55.0% — 140,300 43,700 184,000 8.0% 6.4%
Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies — Monte Villa Parkw ay/Seattle/Bothell 100% 193,823 11,977 23,200 229,000 6.3% 6.2%
9808 Medical Center Drive/Maryland/Rockville 100% 79,320 33,018 2,662 115,000 54% 54%
8800 Technology Forest Face/Texas/Greater Houston 100% 57,315 46,202 8,483 112,000 6.3% 6.0%
Canada 100% 50,219 50,044 12,737 113,000 6.4% 6.3%

1,344,852 1,026,254
2026 and beyond stabilization)
One Hanpshire Street/Greater Boston/Cantbridge 100% — 161,328 ' TBD
311 Arsenal Street/Greater Boston/Canbridge/Inner Suburbs 100% 60,625 233,563
99 Coolidge Avenue/Greater Boston/Carrbridge/Inner Suburbs 75.0% 136,527 192,432 139,041 468,000 71% 7.0%
401 Park Drive/Greater Boston/Fenway 100% — 194,421 TBD
421 Park Drive/Greater Boston/Fenway 99.7% — 422,278
40, 50, and 60 Sylvan Road/Greater Boston/Route 128 100% — 437,356
Other/Greater Boston 100% — 148,804
1450 Owens Street/San Francisco Bay Area/Mssion Bay 254% — 234,665
651 Gatew ay Boulevard/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisco 50.0% 87,357 256,413 143,230 487,000 5.0% 5.1%
10935, 10945, and 10955 Alexandria Way/San Diego/Torrey Fines 100% — 359,926 143,074 503,000 6.2% 5.8%
4135 Canpus Point Court/San Diego/University Town Center 55.0% — 292,913 231,087 524,000 6.6% 6.2%
10075 Barnes Canyon Road/San Diego/Sorrento Mesa 50.0% — 168,582 152,418 321,000 5.5% 5.7%
701 Dexter Avenue North/Seattle/Lake Union 100% — 206,638 TBD

284,509 3,309,319
1,629,361 4,335,573

Committed near-term project expected to commence construction in the next two years

4165 Canpus Point Court/San Diego/University Town Center 55.0% — 69,521 | TBD
L § 1629361 5 4405004 § 3780000 @ § 9820000 ®
Qur share of investmentee) $ 1,550,000 $ 3,570,000 $ 3,030,000 $ 8,150,000

Refer to “Initial stabilized yield (unlevered)” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional information.

1)We expect to provide total estimated costs and related yields for each project with estimated stabilization in 2026 and beyond over the next several quarters.
2)Represents dollar amount rounded to the nearest $10 million and includes preliminary estimated amounts for projects listed as TBD.

3)Represents our share of investment based on our ownership percentage upon completion of development or elopment projects.
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69% of Our Total Development and Redevelopment Pipeline RSF Is Within Our Mega Campuses

The following table summarizes the keyinformation for all our development and redevelopment projects in North America as of September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):



Market /Submark &Jv hi Book Value Square Footage
operty market Inter}:rsst P Development and Redevelopment Totaln
Active and Near-Term Future % portunities Subject to
Construction Market Conditions and Leasing
Under | Committed Priority Future
Construction Near Term Anticipated
Greater Boston
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere at One Kendall Square/ 100% $ 161,328 104,956 — — — 104,956
Cambridge
One Hampshire Street
gﬁ?a (b3ampus: The Arsenal on the Charles/Cambridge/lnner  100% 360,538 417,927 — 25,312 34,157 477,3%6
urbs
311 Arsenal Street, 500 North Beacon Street, and 4 Kingsbury
Avenue
Mega Campus: 480 Arsenal Way and 446, 458, 500, and 550 @ 279,763 204,395 — — 902,000 1,106,395
Ar%engl Street, and 99 Coolidgeé Avenue/Cambridge/inner
urbs
446, 458, 500, and 550 Arsenal Street, and 99 Coolidge Avenue
Meega Campus: Alexandria Centers for Life Science —Fenway/ © 708,309 610,119 — — — 610,119
nway
201 Brookline Avenue and 401 and 421 Park Drive
Mki%a ?gan pus: Alexandria Centere for Life Science —Waltham/ 100% 687,346 735,744 — — 515,000 1,250,744
e
této, 5? and 60 Sylvan Road, 35 Gatehouse Drive, and 840 Winter
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere at Kendall Square/ 100% 126,688 — — — 216,455 216,455
Cambridge
100 Edwin H. Land Boulevard
New Class A/A+ development and redevelopment properties: summa of pipeline (continued
I\Pllrarket /Submarket QN hi ok Value uare Footage
operty/Submarke |nte':-§rsst P Development and Redevelopment Totalm
Active and Near-Term Future % portunities Subject to
Construction Market Conditions and Leasing
Under | Committed Priority Future
Constructlon Near Term Anticipated
San Francisco Bay Area
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Science and Technolog 25.4% $ 234,665 212,7% — — — 212,79%
!Mission Bay/Mission Bay
1450 Owens Street
Alexandria Centere for Life Science — Mllbrae/South San Francisco 47.9% 510,162 285,346 — 198,188 150,213 633,747
230 Harriet Tubman Way, 201 and 231 Adrian Road, and 6 and 30
Rollins Road
Mel%a us: Alexandria Technology Centere — Gateway/ 50.0% 283,002 259,689 — — 291,000 550,689
h San Francisco
651 Gatemay Boulevard
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies 100% 397,159 — — 150,000 1,780,000 1,930,000
— Tanforan/South San Francisco
1122, 1150, and 1178 E Camino Real
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies 100% 6,655 — — 107,250 90,000 197,250
—South San Francisco/South San Francisco
21 12 and 269 East Grand Avenue
a Campus: Alexandria Centere for Life Science —San 100% 446,892 — — 105,000 1,392,830 1,497,830
a rlos/Greater Stanford
960 Industrial Road, 987 and 1075 Commercial Street, and 888
Bransten Road
3825 and 3875 Fabian Way/Greater Stanford 100% 154,174 — — — 478,000 478,000
22100, 2200, 2300, and 2400 Geng Road/Greater Stanford 100% 36,509 — — — 240,000 240,000
901 California Avenue/Greater Stanford 100% 19,770 — — — 56,924 56,924
Mega Campus: 88 Bluxome Street/SoMa 100% 392,785 — — — 1,070,925 1,070,925
Other development and redevelopment projects 100% — — — — 25,000 25,000
$ 2,481,773 757,831 — 560,438 5,574,892 6,893,161

under “Definitions and reoorx:lllatlons in Item 2 for additional information.

glﬁReprsents total grlfare footage upon completion of development or redevelopment of one or more new Class A/A+ properties. me footage presented includes the RSF of mc%? currently in operation at properties that also have
i

ure dev opment or redevel unmes Ug)gr a(%ratlon of existing in-place Iees% we have the intent to demolish or

ate” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item itional information, includi

est elopment and redevelopment s
(2)We own a partial interest in this property through a real estate joint venture. Refer to RFote 4 —“Consolidated and unoonsdlc(iqated real

elop the existing property subject to market
cﬁ?fefﬁy I\r;ged y )
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ions and'leasing. Refer to “Investments in real
estate Jomt verrluras to our%rnaudlted consolidated financial statements in Item 1 for additional details.



Market Qur Book Value Square Footage
Property/Submarket I%\g}:rssthlp Development and Redevelopment Totaln
Active and Near-Term Future % portunities Subject to
Construction Market Conditions and Leasing
Under | Committed Priority Future
Construction Near Term Anticipated
San Diego
Mega Campus: One Alexandria Square/Torrey Pines 100% $ 417,621 334,99 — — 125,280 460,276
;_grggd 10945 and 10955 Alexandria Way and 10975 and 10995
Megta Cam pus: Campus Point by Alexandria/University Town  55.0% 671,303 598,029 492,570 — 650,000 1,740,599
100102), 101402), and 10260 Cal Point Drive and 4135, 4155,
4161, 4165, and 42752 Campus Point Court
Mega Campus: SD Tech by Alexandria/Sorrento Mesa 50.0% 317,172 253,079 — 250,000 243,845 746,924
9805 Scranton Road and 10065 and 10075 Barnes Canyon Road
11255 and 11355 North Torrey Fines Road/Torrey Fines 100% 150,187 — — 153,000 62,000 215,000
Costa Verde by Alexandria/University Town Center 100% 138,107 — — — 537,000 537,000
8410-8750 Genesee Avenue and 4282 Esplanade Court
Mega Campus: 5200 lllumina Way/University Town Center 51.0% 17,441 — — — 451,832 451,832
ARE Towne Centre/University Town Center 100% 19,869 — — — 230,000 230,000
9363, 9373, and 9393 Towne Centre Drive
9625 Tow ne Centre Drive/University Town Center 30.0% 837 — — — 100,000 100,000
aMega Campus: Sequence District by Alexandria/Sorrento Mes 100% 46,323 — — — 1,798,915 1,798,915
6260, 6290, 6310, 6340, 6350, and 6450 Sequence Drive
Scripps Science Park by Alexandria/Sorrento Mesa 100% 120,941 — — — 598,349 598,349
10048, 10219, 10256, and 10260 Meanley Drive and 10277
Scripps Ranch Boulevard
Pacific Technology Park/Sorrento Mesa 50.0% 23,857 — — — 149,000 149,000
9444 Waples Street
{/40%2)[4031 4045, and 4075 Sorrento Valley Boulevard/Sorrento 100% 43,641 — — — 247,000 247,000
Other develonment and redevelonment nroiects @ 75716 —_ —_ —_ 475000 475000
lzl1ew Class A/A+ development and redevelopment properties: sum mauof pipeline ‘oontinued!
Market ok Value uare Footage
Property/Submarket %’;Z;Sth'p Development and Redevelopment Totaln
Active and Near-Term Future % portunities Subject to
Construction Market Conditions and Leasing
Under | Committed Priority Future
Construction Near Term Anticipated
Seattle
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Life Science — South @ $ 485628 227,577 — 869,000 188,400 1,284,977
Lake Union/Lake Union
601 and 701 Dexter Avenue North and 800 Mercer Street
Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies — Monte Villa 100% 11,977 34,306 — — — 34,306
Parkw ay/Bothell
3301 Monte Villa Parkway
830 and 1010 4th Avenue South/SoDo 100% 59,262 — — — 597,313 597,313
410 West Harrison Street/Hliott Bay 100% — — — — 91,000 91,000
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies 100% 17,439 — — — 230,000 230,000
— Canyon Park/Bothell
21660 20th Avenue Southeast
Other development and redevelopment projects 100% 142,484 — — — 706,087 706,087
T 716790 261,883 — 869,000 1,812,800 2,943,683
Maryland
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Life Science — Shady 100% 54,904 29,890 — — 296,000 325,890
Grove/Rockville
9808 Medical Center Drive and 9830 Darnestown Road
54,904 29,890 — — 296,000 325,890
Research Triangle
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies 100% 103,653 — — 180,000 990,000 1,170,000
and Agtech — Research Triangle/Research Triangle
4 and 12 Davis Drive
Mega Campus: Alexandrla Centere for Life Science —Durham/ 100% 176,524 — — — 2,210,000 2,210,000
Research Triangle
41 Moore Drive
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for NextGen Medicines/ 100% $ 108,035 = = = 1,055,000 1,055,000

Research Triangle

3029 East Cornvallis Road
0 “Mega campus” under “Definitions and moncﬂlahons in Item 2for addltlonal inf ormation.
%&Reprﬁents total sqmergecootage completion of dev of one

one or
tunities. Ufon a(%ratlon of eX|st|ng in-place leases, \Ae have the intent to demolish or
for

estate” under “Definitions and reooncm ions” in Item itional information, |nc|ud||§:
(2)We have a 100% interest in 601 and 701 Dexter Avenue North aggregating 415,977 R

and redev elopment
anda 60% interest in the priority antlmpated devel

more new Class A/A+ properties. ented includes the RSF of buildi
%evelop thaeg:x%?‘srjgedpmpeﬂy sub]ect to market

in rental propert
Nbrcer Street aggregating 869,000 RSF.

square feet cunently incl
lopment pr
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currently in operation at properties that also have
itions andyleasmg Refer to “Investments in real



Market /Submark glﬂr hi Book Value Square Footage
operty market Imer::rsst P Development and Redevelopment Totaln
Active and Near-Term Future %zpor_tynities Subject to
Construction Market Conditions and Leasing
Under Committed Priority Future
Construction Near Term Anticipated
Research Triangle (continued)
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Sustainable 100% $ 53326 — — — 750,000 750,000
Technologies/Research Triangle
120 TW Alexander Drive, 2752 East NC Highway 54, and 10 South
Triangle Drive
100 Capitola Drive/Research Triangle 100% — — — — 65,965 65,965
Other development and redevelopnent projects 100% 4,185 — — — 76,262 76,262
445,723 — — 180,000 5,147,227 5,327,227
New York Gty
Mega Campus: Alexandria Centere for Life Science —New York 100% 165,061 — — — 550,000 @ 550,000
City/New York City
165,061 — — — 550,000 550,000
Texas
Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies at The Woodlands/ 100% 49,034 73,298 — — 116,405 189,703
Greater Houston
8800 Technology Forest Place
1001 Trinity Street and 1020 Red River Street/Austin 100% 10,177 — — 126,034 123,976 250,010
Other development and redevelopment projects 100% 136,980 — — — 1,694,000 1,694,000
196,191 73,298 — 126,034 1,934,381 2,133,713
Canada 100% 50,044 139,311 — — 371,743 511,054
Other development and redevelopment projects 100% 120,411 — — — 724,349 724,349
Total pipeline as of Septenber 30, 2024 $9,340,425 © 4,975,327 492,570 2,163,784 27,582,766 35,214,447
Refer to “Mega campus” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional information. K K K K K K
(1)TotaIDsecT;ua_re footage includes 3,376,039 RSF of buildings currently in operation that we expect to demolish or redevelop and commence future construction subject to market conditions and leasing. Refer to “Investments in real estate”
under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional information, includi deveioe'nent and redevelogmm square feet currently included in rental ies. K i
(2)During the three months ended September 30, 2024, we filed a lawsuit against the New York City Health + Hospitals Corporation and the New York City Economic Development Corporation for fraud and breach of contract concemning our

%&?1 tolgdrre)tur_\ld lease a land parcel to develop a future world-class life science building within the Alexandria Center” for Life Science — New York City campus. Refer to “Legal proceedings” in Item 1 under Part Il — Other Information for
itional details.
(3)Includes $4.3 billion of projects that are currently. unc2hr62 gonstmction and are 55% leased/negotiating. We also expect to commence construction of one committed near-term project aggregating $69.5 million, which is 51% leased/

negotiating, in the next two years after September 30,
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Resullts of operations . ) . " . .

We present a tabular comparison of items, whether gain or loss, that may facilitate a high-level understanding of our results

and provide context for the disclosures included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and our
subsequent quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. We believe that such tabular presentation promotes a better understanding for investors of
the corporate-level decisions made and activities performed that significantly affect comparison of our operating results from period to
period. We also believe that this tabular presentation will supplement for investors an understanding of our disclosures and real estate
operating results. Gains or losses on sales of real estate and impairments of assets classified as held for sale are related to corporate-
level decisions to dispose of real estate. Gains or losses on early extinguishment of debt are related to corporate-level financin
decisions focused on our capital structure strategy. Significant realized and unrealized gains or losses on non-real estate investments,
impairments of real estate and non-real estate investments, and acceleration of stock oom&ensahon expense due to the resignations of
executive officers are not related to the operating performance of our real estate assets as they result from strategic, corporate-level
non-real estate investment decisions and external market conditions. Impairments of non-real estate investments are not related to the
operating performance of our real estate as they represent the write-down of non-real estate investments when their fair values
decrease below their reSf)ective carmying values due to changes in general market or other conditions outside of our control. Significant
items, whether a gain or loss, included in the tabular disclosure for current periods are described in further detail in ltem 2. Keyitems
included in netincome attributable to Aexandria’s common stockholders for the three and nine months ended September 30,2024 and
2023 and the related per share amounts were as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Septenrber 30, Nine Months Ended Septerrber 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Anount Per Share — Diluted Amount Per Share — Diluted
Unrealized gains (losses) on non-real estate $ 26 $ (7720 $ 002 $ (045 $ (325 $(21.00 $ (019 $ (1.29)
investrrents
Gain on sales of real estate 271 — 0.16 — 215 2148 0.16 126
Inrpairment of non-real estate investments (10.3) (28.5) (0.06) (0.17) (37.8) (51.5) (0.22) (0.30)
Inrpairment of real estate (5.7) (20.6) (0.03) (0.12) (36.5) (189.2) (0.22) (1.11)
Acceleration of stock conpensation expense — (1.9) — (0.01) — (1.9) — (0.01)
due to executive officer resignations
Total $ 137 $(1282) $ 009 $ (0.75) $ (793) $(2488) $ (047) $ (1.45)

Refer to Note 3 —“Investments in real estate” and Note 7 — “Investments” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in
Item 1 for additional information.
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Same properties
We supplement an evaluation of our results of operations with an evaluation of operating performance of certainofour
properties, referred to as “Same Properties.” For additional information on the determination of our Same Properties portfolio, refer to
"Same property comparisons” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in ltem 2. The following table presents information regarding our
Same Properties for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024:

September 30, 2024

Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended

Percentage change in net operating income over comparable period from prior year 1.5% 1.6%

Percentage change in net operating income (cash basis) over comparable period  6.5% 4.6%

from prior year

Operating margin 68% 69%

Number of Same Properties 344 339
RSF 34,652,674 33,720,609
Occupancy— current-period average 94.8% 94.4%

Occupancy — same-period prior-year average 94.1% 94.3%

The following table reconciles the number of Same Properties to total properties for the nine months ended
September 30, 2024:
Development — under construction Properties

201 Brookline Avenue

99 Coolidge Avenue

500 North Beacon Street and 4 Kingsbury Avenue
9808 Medical Center Drive

1450 Owens Street

230 Harriet Tubman Way

4155 Canpus Point Court

10935, 10945, and 10955 Alexandria Way
10075 Barnes Canyon Road

421 Park Drive

4135 Canpus Point Court

701 Dexter Avenue North

[3)] PN U SN NN N SN

=

Development — placed into service after January 1, 2023  Rroperties
751 Gateway Boulevard

15 Necco Street

325 Binney Street

9810 Darnestown Road

9820 Darnestown Road

1150 Eastlake Avenue East

[o)) PN ENENENEN

Redevelopment — under construction Properties
840 Winter Street

40, 50, and 60 Sylvan Road

Alexandria Centere for Advanced Technologies — Vonte
Villa Parkway

651 Gateway Boulevard

401 Park Drive

8800 Technology Forest Face

311 Arsenal Street

One Hanpshire Street

Canada

Other

D W =

[ NN NN

deevquPment — placed into service after Properties
January 1, 2023

20400 Century Boulevard 1

140 First Street

2&100 Biis Road, 40 Moore Drive, and 14 TW Alexander
ive

w =

9601 and 9603 Medical Center Drive

~| N

Acaquisitions after January 1, 2023 Properties
Other

Unconsolidated real estate JVs

Properties held for sale

Total properties excluded from Same Properties
Same Properties

‘2I'8t2:::{ properties in North Arrerica as of Septenrber 30,
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Comparison of resullts for the three months ended September 30, 2024 to the three months ended SePtember 30.2023

The following table presents a comparison of the components of net operating income for our Same Properties and Non-Same
Properties for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2023 (dollars in
thousands). Refer to “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for definitions of “Tenant recoveries” and “Net operating income” and

their reconciliations from the most directly comparable financial measures presented in accordance with , income from rentals and
netincome, respectively.



Three Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
Income from rentals:
Same Properties $ 452417 $ 439541 $ 12876 2.9%
Non-Same Properties 127,152 86,811 40,341 46.5
Rental revenues 579,569 526,352 53,217 101
Same Properties 168,923 165,226 3697 22
Non-Same Properties 27,252 15,953 11,299 70.8
Tenant recoveries 196,175 181,179 14,996 8.3
Income from rentals 775,744 707,531 68,213 96
Same Properties 386 619 (233) (37.6)
Non-Same Properties 15477 5,638 9,839 1745
Other income 15,863 6,257 9,606 1535
Same Properties 621,726 605,386 16,340 27
Non-Same Properties 169,881 108,402 61,479 56.7
Total revenues 791,607 713,788 77,819 109
Same Properties 199,369 189,368 10,001 53
Non-Same Properties 33,896 28,319 5577 197
Rental operations 233,265 217,687 15578 7.2
Same Properties 422357 416,018 6,339 15
Non-Same Properties 135,985 80,083 55,902 69.8
Net operating income $ 558,342 $ 496,101 $ 62,241 12.5%
Net operating income — Same Properties $ 422357 $ 416,018 $ 6,339 1.5%
Straight-line rent revenue (4,974) (23,981) 19,007 (79.3)
Amortization of acquired below-market leases (14,582) (13,792) (790) 5.7
Net operating income — Same Properties (cash basis) $ 402,801 $ 378,245 $ 24,556 6.5%
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Income from rentals . .

otal income from rentals for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $68.2 million, or 9.6%, to .
$775.7 million, compared to $707.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, as a result of an increase in rental
revenues and tenant recoweries, as discussed below.
Rental revenues . - -
Total rental revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $53.2 million, or 10.1%, to $579.6 million,
compared to $526.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to an increase in rental
revenues from our Non-Same Properties related to 2.5 million RSF of development and redevelopment projects placed into senice
subsequent to July 1, 2023 and four operating properties aggregating 486,610 RSF aoqzuwed_subsequent to July 1, 2023.
Rental revenues from our Same Properties for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $12.9 million,or
2.9%, to $452.4 million, compared to $439.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to
rental rate changes on lease renewals and re-leasing of space since July 1, 2023 and a 0.7% increase in the occupancy of our e
I;_roperttles to 94.8% for the three months ended September 30, 2024 from 94.1% for the three months ended September 30, 2023.

enant recoveries
Tenant recoveries for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $15.0 million, or 8.3%, to $196.2 million,
compared to $181.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. This increase was primarily from our Non-Same
Properties related to our development and redevelopment projects placed into service and properties acquired subsequent to July 1,
2023, as discussed above under “Rental revenues.”
Same Pro_[:)_erties’ tenant recoveries for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $3.7 million, or 2.2%, to .
$168.9 million, compared to $165.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, primarily due to higher operatlrbgzemenses
during the three months ended September 30, 2024, as discussed under “Rental operations” below. As of September 30, 2024, 93% of
our leases (on an annual rental revenue basis) were triple net leases, which require tenants to pay substantially all real estate taxes,
insurance, utilities, repairs and maintenance, common area expenses, and other operating expenses (including increases thereto) in
addition to base rent.
Rental operations
Total rental operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased b¥r?15.6 million, or 7.2%, to
$233.3 million, compared to $217.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to
incremental expenses related to our Same Properties, as discussed below. . .
Same Properties’ rental tg)eratlng expenses increased b]y$10.0 million, or 5.3%, to $199.4 million during the three months
ended September 30, 2024, compared to $189.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, primarily as the result of
increases in (i) utility expenses and contractual costs a_ﬁ;gregatln? $5.0 million, due to higher rates and increases in senvices, and
(i) higher ground lease expenses aggregating $1.6 million, due fo increases in contractual rates related to lease extensions and higher
%ré)und lease percentage rent.

preciation and amortization ) .

epreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $24.6 million, or 9.1%,
to $294.0 million, compared to $269.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to
adgmqual dtg reciation from development and redevelopment projects placed into service and properties acquired, as discussed above
under “Rental revenues.

General and administrative expenses
neral and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2024 decreased by $2.0 million, or 4.4%, to

$43.9 million, compared to $46.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, primarily due to a reduction in compensation
costs resulting from the resignations of two executive officers in the second half of 2023. As a peroentage of net ogeratirég income, our
generg{_ anld administrative expenses for the trailing twelve months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were 8.9% and 9.3%,
respectively.
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Interest expense
nterest expense for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):
Three Months Ended September 30,

Component 2024 2023 Change

Gross interest $ 130,046 $ 107,530 $ 22516
Capitalized interest (86,496) (96,119) 9,623
Interest expense $ 43550 $ 11411 $ 32,139
Average debt balance outstanding(1 $ 12,694,260 $ 11,193,343  $ 1,500,917
Weighted-average annual interest rate(2) 41% 3.8% 0.3%

1)Represents the av debt balance outstanding during the respective periods.
%Repr&cmts anmal%?ctd interest incurred divi igthe aveg deb?%alame outstanding during the respective

tive periods.
e net change in interest expense during the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2023, resulted from the following (dollars in thousandss):

Component Interest Rate(1) Effective Date  Change
Increases in interest incurred due to:

Issuances of debt:

$600 million of unsecured senior notes payable due 2054 5.71% February2024 $ 8,440
$400 million of unsecured senior notes payable due 2036 5.38% February 2024 5,264
Increases in construction borrowings and interest rates under secured notes payable  8.40% 849
Higher average outstanding balances and/or rate increases on borrowings under 7,681
commercial paper program and unsecured senior line of credit

Other increase in interest 282
Change in gross interest T 22516
Decrease in capitalized interest 9,623
Total change in interest expense $ 32139

g?geg;ﬁka?ts the weighted-av erage interest rate as of the end of the applicable period, including amortization of loan fees, amortization of debt premiums (discounts), and
ees.

Impairment of real estate

During the three months ended September 30, 2024, we recognized real estate imﬁaiment charges aﬁ;gregatin $5.7 million

to adjust the carrying amount of one propertyin Canada that continued to meet the held-for-sale classification to the sales price under
negotiation with a potential buyer less costs to sell. We expect to sell this property within 12 months.

Durinﬁ the three months ended September 30, 2023, we recogg]ized real estate impairment charges aggBregating $20.6 million

to further reduce the carrying amounts of primarily three non-laboratory properties located in our Greater Boston and Texas markets to
their respective estimated fair value less costs to sell.

Investment income

During the three months ended September 30, 2024, we recognized investment income aggregating $15.2 million. This

income primarily consisted of gains of $26.2 million from increases in fair values of our non-real estate investments in publicly traded
companies and in privately held entities that do not report NAV, partially offset bxm[s)m_rment charges of $10.3 million primarily related
to two non-real estate investments in privately held entities that do not report NAV. During the three months ended September 30, 2023,
we recognized an investment loss aggregating $80.7 million, which consisted of $77.2 million of unrealized losses and $3.5 million of
realized losses. For more information about our investments, refer to Note 7 — “Investments” to our unaudited consolidated financial
statements. For our |mJ)a|rments accounting policy, refer to “Investments” in Note 2 — “Summary of significant accounting policies” to
our unaudited consolidated financial statements in ltem 1.

Gain on sales of real estate . . . o . »

During the three months ended September 30, 2024, we recognized $27.1 million of gains primarily related the disposition of

1165 Eastlake Avenue East in our Lake Union submarket. The gains were classified in gain on sales of real estate within our
consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2024.

Other comprehensive income

otal other comprehensive income for the three months ended September 30, 2024 a%%re ated $5.1 million, compared to total
other comprehensive loss of $8.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The difference is primarily due to the
unrealized foreign currency translation gains related to our operations in Canada.
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Comparison of results for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 to the nine months ended Se[ftember 30,2023

e following table presents a comparison of the oomﬁ)onents of net operating income for our Same Properties and Non-Same
Properties for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2023 (dollars in
thousands). Refer to “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for definitions of “Tenant recoveries” and “Net operating income” and

their reconciliations from the most directly comparable financial measures presented in accordance with , income from rentals and
netincome, respectively.



Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
Income from rentals:
Same Properties $ 1342463 $ 1,307,866 $ 34597 26%
Non-Same Properties 395,341 274,677 120,664 43.9
Rental revenues 1,737,804 1,682,543 155,261 9.8
Same Properties 473,061 461,555 11,506 25
Non-Same Properties 75,592 55,721 19,871 357
Tenant recoveries 548,653 517,276 31,377 6.1
Income from rentals 2,286,457 2,099,819 186,638 8.9
Same Properties 1,102 1,356 (254) (18.7)
Non-Same Properties 39,890 27,308 12,582 461
Other income 40,992 28,664 12,328 43.0
Same Properties 1,816,626 1,770,777 45849 26
Non-Same Properties 510,823 357,706 153,117 4238
Total revenues 2,327,449 2,128,483 198,966 9.3
Same Properties 559,427 532,942 26,485 5.0
Non-Same Properties 109,406 103,512 5894 57
Rental operations 668,833 636,454 32,379 51
Same Properties 1,257,199 1,237,835 19,364 16
Non-Same Properties 401,417 254,194 147,223 579
Net operating income $ 1658616 $ 1492029 $ 166587 11.2%
Net operating income — Same Properties $ 1257199 $ 1,237,835 $ 19,364 1.6%
Straight-line rent revenue (37,251) (73,626) 36,375 (494)
Amortization of acquired below-market leases (44,993) (40,410) (4,583) 11.3
Net operating income — Same Properties (cash basis) $ 1174955 $ 1123799 $ 51,156 4.6%
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Income from rentals

Total income from rentals for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $186.6 million, or 8.9%, to $2.3 billion,
compared to $2.1 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, as a result ofincrease in rental revenues and tenant
recoveries, as discussed below.

Rental revenues

Total rental revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $155.3 million, or 9.8%, to $1.7 billion,

compared to $1.6 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarilydue to an increase in rental
revenues from our Non-Same Properties related to 4.1 million RSF of development and redevelopment projects EJIaced into senvice
subsequent to January 1, 2023 and five operating properties aggregating 734,353 RSF acquired subsequent to January 1, 2023.
Rental revenues from our Same Properties for the nine months ended é)tember 30, 2024 increased by $34.6 million, or

2.6%, to $1.3 billion, compared to $1.3 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to rental
rate increases on lease renewals and re-leasing of space since January 1, 2023.

Tenant recoveries . . . .

Tenant recoveries for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $31.4 million, or 6.1%, to $548.7 million, .
compared to $517.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. This increase was partially from our Non-Same Properties
related to our development and redevelopment projects placed into senice and properties acquired subsequent to January 1, 2023, as
discussed above under “Rental revenues.” . -

Same Properties’ tenant recoveries for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $11.5 million, or 2.5%, to

$473.1 million, compared to $461.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, primarily due to h|?her operating expenses
during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, as discussed under "Rental operations” below. As of September 30, 2024, 93% of
our leases (on an annual rental revenue basis) were triple net leases, which require tenants to pay substantially all real estate taxes,
|nds(§J_|tjanote, gtllmes, rtepa|rs and maintenance, common area expenses, and other operating expenses (including increases thereto) in
addition to base rent.

Rental operations

ofal rental operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 increased t%$3_2.4 million, or 5.1%, to
$668.8 million, compared to $636.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023.The increase was primarily due to
incremental expenses related to our Same Properties’ rental operating expenses as discussed below.
Same Properties’ rental Oéaerating expenses increased b]y $26.5 million, or 5.0%, to $559.4 million during the nine months .
ended September 30, 2024, compared to $532.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, primarily as the result of (i)
the increase in utilities expenses and contractual costs aggregating $12.2 million, primarily due to higher rates and increase in senvices;
(ii) the increase in property taxes aggregating $7.5 million, primarily due to increases from reassessments in values; and (ii) the
increase in property insurance expenses aggregating $2.1 million, primarily due to higher insurance premiums.

Depreciation and amortization ] . o

e?reaatlon and amortization expense for the nine months ended SeJ;tember 30, 2024 increased by $64.0 million, or 7.9%, to
$872.3 million, compared to $808.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to additional
g'gpr?ac;atuon from development and redevelopment projects placed into senice and properties acquired, as discussed above under

ental revenues.

General and administrative expenses
neral and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 decreased by $4.4 million, or 3.2%, to

$135.6 million, compared to $140.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, primari ¥due to areduction in
compensation costs resulting from the resignations of two executive officers in the second half of 2023. As a percentage of net
operating income, our general and administrative expenses for the trailing twelve months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were
8.9% and 9.3%, respectively.
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Interest expense

nterest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):
Nine Months Ended September 30,

Component 2024 2023 Change

Gross interest $ 379,554 $ 317100 $ 62,454
Capitalized interest (249,375) (274,863) 25,488
Interest expense $ 130,179 $ 42237 % 87,942
Average debt balance outstanding(1 $ 12417845 $ 11,060,327 $ 1,357,518
Weighted-average annual interest rate(2) 4.1% 3.8% 0.3%

iods.
2)Represents annualized total interest incurred divic b% the av deb?%]alars\oe outstanding during the respective periods. .

e net change in interest expense dunnﬁ the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2023, resulted from the following (dollars in thousands):
Component Interest Rate(y  Effective Date Change
Increases in interest incurred due to:

Issuances of debt:

giRepresents the average debt balance outstanding during the respective
erage

$500 million of unsecured senior notes payable due 2053 5.26% February 2023 $ 3,226
$500 million of unsecured senior notes payable due 2035 4.88% February 2023 2,983
$600 million of unsecured senior notes payable due 2054 5.71% February 2024 21,194
$400 million of unsecured senior notes payable due 2036 5.38% February 2024 13,219
Eggglsees in construction borrowings and interest rates under secured notes  8.40% 3,380
Higher average outstanding balances and/or rate increases on borrowings 16,482
under commercial paper program and unsecured senior line of credit

Other increase in interest 1,970
Change in gross interest 62,454
Decrease in capitalized interest 25,488
Total change in interest expense $ 87942

g?\z{eme?ts the weighted-average interest rate as of the end of the applicable period, including amortization of loan fees, amortization of debt premiums (discounts), and
€ees.
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Impairment of real estate

uring the nine months ended September 30, 2024, we recognized real estate impairment charges aggregating $36.5 million,
which pr|mar|IP]/con5|sted of the following:
*Impairment charges aggregatin $30.8'million primarily consisting of the pre-acquisition costs related to two potential
acquisitions ag%zegatmg 1.4 million RSF of future development in our Greater Boston market. We executed gurchase
agreements for these potential acquisitions with the total purchase price aggregatlng $366.8 million in 2020 and 2022, and we
initially expected to close these acquisitions after 2024. Our intent for each site included the demolition of existing buildings
upon éxpiration of the existing in-place leases and the development of life science properties. During the three months ended
June 30, 2024, due to the existing macroeconomic environment that negatively impacted the financial outlooks for these
projects, we decided to no Iongﬁer proceed with these acquisitions, resulting in the recognition of impairment charges.
*Impairment charge of $5.7 million to acgust the carrying amount of one property in Canada that continued to meet the held-for-
satlﬁ_ cl1a§siﬁcatlg]on to the sales price under negotiation with a potential buyer less costs to sell. We expect to sell this property
within 12 months.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, we recognized real estate impairment charges aggregating $189.2 million,



which primarily consisted of the following: . - .
«Impairment charge afggreqatmg $145.4 million to reduce the carrying amount of a three-building office campus in our Route
128 submarket to its fair value less costs to sell. We completed the sale of this campus in June 2023 for a sales price of
$109.3 million, with no gain or loss recognized in earnings.
«Impairment charge aggregating $20.6 million to further reduce the carrying amounts of primarily three non-laborato
properties located in our Greater Boston and Texas markets to their respective estimated fair values less costs to sell. We
completed the sale of two of these properties in December 2023 and January 2024, and we expect to sell the remaining real
estate asset during the next 12 months.
«Impairment charge aggregating $17.1 million to fully write down the carrying amount of our one remaining propertyin Asia.
Investment income . ) . . - .
During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, we recognized an investment income aggregating $14.9 million. This
income primarily consisted of gains of $51.2 million from increases in fair values of our non-real estate investments in pr_ivatelle/ held
entities that do not report NAVand in publicly traded companies, partially offset byimpairment charges of $37.8 million primarily related
to non-real estate investments in privately held entities that do not report NAV. ) . .
During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, we recognized investment loss aggregating $204.1 million, which
consisted of $16.9 million of realized gains and $221.0 million of unrealized losses. . . )
For more information about our investments, refer to Note 7 — “Investments” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements
in ltem 1. For our impairments accounting policy, refer to “Investments” in Note 2 — “Summary of significant accounting policies” to our
unaudited consolidated financial statements in’ltem 1.
Gain on sales of real estate . . . L . »

unn%a e nine months ended September 30, 2024, we recognized $27.5 million ofdgalns primarily related to the disposition of
1165 Eastlake Avenue East in our Lake Union submarket. The gains were classified in gain on sales of real estate within our
consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. . » .
During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, we recognized $214.8 million of gains related to the dispositions of six .
real estate assets. The gains were classified in gain on sales of real estate within our consolidated statement of operations for the nine
months ended September 30, 2023.

Other comprehensive loss . -
otal other comprehensive loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 aggregated $6.6 million, compared to total

other comprehensive loss of $4.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The difference is primarily due to the foreign
currency translation related to our operations in Canada.
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Summary of capital expenditures
r construction spending for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and projected spending for the year ending
December 31, 2024 consisted of the following (in thousands):
Nine Months Ended Pro'ke(zcted Mddpoint for

September 30,2024  the Year En |n%
December 31,2024

Construction of Class A/A+ properties:
Active construction projects

Under construction and committed near-term projects(1) and projects $ 1448736 $ 1,913,000
expected to commence active construction in the fourth quarter of 20242

Future pipeline pre-construction

Primarily mega camrﬁus expansion pre-construction work (entitiement, 349,082 652,000
design, and site work)

Revenue- and non-revenue-enhancing capital expenditures 158,229 250,000
tConsht'su)cﬁon spend (before contributions from noncontrolling interests or 1,956,047 2,815,000
enan

Corztribut)ions from noncontrolling interests (consolidated real estate joint (272,072) (430,000) (3
ventures

Tenant-funded and -built landlord improvements (107,562) (135,000)
Total construction spending $ 1576413 % 2,250,000
2024 guidance range for construction spending $1,950,000 — $2,550,000

(NIncludes projects under construction agga%;aél(@ 5.0 million RSF and one committed near-term pm{ed aggegaiing'; 492 570 RSF expected to commence construction
during the next two years after September 30, , which are 55% Ieased/r_‘»et};dlatlng and expected to generate $570 million in incremental annual net operating

income pnmanlg/ _ctmm_encu;.%_f_romthe fourth quarter of 2024 through the first quarter of 2028. . o X

(2)Includes certain priority anticipated development and redevelopment projects expected to commence active construction in the fourth quarter of 2024, subject to market
conditions and leasing. Refer to “Investments in real estate” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional details, including development and
redevelopment square feet currently included in rental p_ropemm. i L i

SI)'RepreserﬁS contractual capital commitments from existing consolidated real estate joint venture partners to fund construction.

ojected capital contributions from partners in consolidated real estate joint ventures to fund construction
e following table summarizes projected capital contributions from partners in our existing consolidated joint ventures to fund

construction through 2027 (in thousands):

Timing Amount()

October 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 $ 157,928
2025 through 2027 885,526
Total $ 1,043,454

(1)Represents contractual capital commitments from existing consolidated real estate joint venture partners to fund construction.
Average real estate basis used for capitalization of interest . . )
r construction s&en ling includes capitalized interest. The table below provides key categories of real estate basis

capitalized during the nine months ended September 30, 2024:



Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024
Average Real Estate Percentage of Total

Basis Capitalized Average Real Estate
Basis Capitalized

Construction of Class A/A+ properties:
Active construction projects
Under construction and committed near-term projects $ 2,849,742 35%
Future pipeline pre-construction
Priority anticipated projects 559,815 () 7
Primarily mega campus expansion pre-construction work (entitiement, design, 3,692,497 ) 45
and site work
Smaller redevelopments and repositioning capital projects 1,025,019 13

$ 8,127,073 100%
(1)Average real estate basis capitalized related to our future pipeline pre-construction activities includes 31% from four key active and future development and
redevelopment projects on mega campuses.
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Projected results

We present updated guidanoe for EPS attributable to Alexandria’s common stockholders — diluted, funds from operations per
share attributable to Aexandria’s common stockholders — diluted, and funds from operations per share attributable to Aexandria’s
common stockholders — diluted, as adjusted, based on our current view of existing market conditions and other assumptions for the
year ending December 31, 2024 as set forth in the tables below. The tables below also provide a reconciliation of EPS attributable to
Aexandria’s common stockholders — diluted, the most directly comparable financial measure presented in accordance with GAAP, to
funds from operations per share and funds from operations per share, as adjusted, non- measures, and other key assumptions
included in our updated guidance for the year ending December 31, 2024. There can be no assurance that actual amounts will not be
Ir;wategallyhlgher or lower than these expeéctations. Refer to our discussion of “Forward-looking statements” at the beginning of this
em 2.
Projected 2024 Earnil per Share and Funds From Operations per Share Attributableto  As of 10/21/24  As of 7/22/24
Alexandria’s Common Stockholders — Diluted

Earnings per share() $26010$2.64 $2.98t0 $3.10
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 6.05 5.95

Gain on sales of real estate(2 (0.38) =
Impairment of real estate — rental properties and land2 0.67 0.01
Allocation of unvested restricted stock awards (0.06) (0.05)
Funds from operations per share() $8.8810$8.92  $8.89t0 $9.01
Unrealized losses on non-real estate investments 0.19 0.20
Impairment of non-real estate investments 0.22 0.16
Impairment of real estate 0.17 0.17
Allocation to unvested restricted stock awards (0.01) (0.01)
Funds from operations per share, as adjusted) $94510$949 $9.41 to $9.53
Mdpoint $9.47 $9.47
#1)Exclud% unrealized gains or losses on non-real estate investments after September 30, 2024 that are required to be recognized in eamings and are excluded from

u hare, as adjusted.

0 our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1 for additional details.
(3)Refer to “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional information.

rom &aﬂons s .
§2)Includes 7.1 milliageéf in on salés of real estate and $106.8 million of real estate impairments recognized in October 2024. Refer to Note 16 — “Subsequent Events”

Key Assumptions(1) 2024 Guidance
(Dollars in millions) W
Occupancy percentage for operating properties in North America as of December 31, 2024 94.6% 95.6%
Lease renewals and re-leasing of space:
Rental rate changes 11.0% 19.0%
Rental rate changes (cash basis) 5.0% 13.0%
Same property performance:
Net operating income changes 0.5% 2.5%
Net operating income changes (cash basis) 3.0% 5.0%
Straight-line rent revenue) $ 147 $ 162
General and administrative expenses(3) $ 176 $ 186
Capitalization of interest $ 325 § 355
Interest expense $ 154 § 184
Realized gains on non-real estate investments() $ 9% $ 125
1)Qi|!' ;c‘al?sm'*)tiors_ Eresefﬂeq_in the table above are subject to a number of variables and uncertainties, including those discussed as “Forward-looking statements” under
; “Iltem 1A._Risk factors”; and “Item 7. anaqew‘»egs discussion and analysis of financial condition and resuits of operations” of our annual on Form 10K for

the year ended December 31, 2023, as well as in “ltem 1A. Risk factors” within “Part || — Other information” of this quarterly re%n on Form 10-Q. To the extent our full-

vear eamings guidance is. ed during the year, we will provide additional disclosure supporting reasons for.ar}%/ significant changes to sucgegguldam. .

2)Reduction in the midpoint of our guidance range for straight-line rent revenue by $22 million is"primarily attributable to (i) the wite-off of a deferred rent receivable of

million related to the lease termination and a payment of $10 million from a teriant at 409 lllinois Street in our Mssion submarket, a 234,249 RSF property

our consolidated real estate joint venture for which we have an ownership interest of 25%, and w a change in the expected stabilization date from the fourth quarter
2024 to the first quarter of at ourful%&gased development project at 230 Harriet Tubman Way in our South San Francisco submarket as reported in our Form

10-Qfor the quarterly period ended June 30, 2023. o o X o i i .

(3)Reduction in the midpoint of our guidance rgﬁe for general and administrative expense by $5 million is primarily attributable to the realization of savings associated with

overall efficiencies, including enhanced cost rol measures, incremental use of technology, streamlined processes, and optimization of execution in connection with

the sale of non-core assets not integral to our mega campus strategy . i i o o X

(4)Represents realized gains and losses included in funds from operations per share — diluted, as adjusted, and excludes significant impairments realized on non-real

estate investments, if any. Refer to Note 7 — “Investments” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1 for additional details.

Key Credit Metric Targets(1)

Net debt and preferred stock to Adjusted EBITDA— fourth quarter of 2024 annualized Less than or equal to 5.1x
Fixed-charge coverage ratio — fourth quarter of 2024 annualized Greater than or equal to 4.5x
(1)Refer to “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional information.
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Consolidated and unconsolidated real estate joint ventures

We present components of balance sheet and operating results information for the noncontrolling interest share ofour
consolidated real estate joint ventures and for our share of investments in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures to help investors
estimate balance sheet and operating results information related to our partially owned entities. These amounts are estimated by
computing, for each joint venture that we consolidate in our financial statements, the noncontrolling interest percentage of each financial
item to arrive at the cumulative noncontrolling interest share of each component presented. In addition, for our real estate joint ventures



that we do not control and do not consolidate, we apply our economic ownership percenta ge to the unconsolidated real estate joint
ventures to arrive at our proportionate share of each component presented. Refer to Note 4 — “Consolidated and unconsolidated real
estate joint ventures” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1 for further discussion.

Consolidated Real Estate Joint Ventures

1)
PropertyMarket/Submarket m?ggthéﬂgpgt %e()rg%g RSF
50 and 60 Binney Street/Greater Boston/Cambridge/Inner Suburbs 66.0% 532,395
75/125 Binney Street/Greater Boston/Cambridge/Inner Suburbs 60.0% 388,270
100 and 225 Binney Street and 300 Third Street/Greater Boston/Cambridge/Inner Suburbs ~ 70.0% 870,106
99 Coolidge Avenue/Greater Boston/Cambridge/Inner Suburbs 25.0% 116,414
15 Necco Street/Greater Boston/Seaport Innovation District 43.3% 345,996
285, 299, 307, and 345 Dorchester Avenue/Greater Boston/Seaport Innovation District 40.0% —
Aexandria Centere for Science and Technology— Mssion Bay/San Francisco Bay Area/ 75.0% 996,181
Mssion Bay3)
1450 Owens Street/San Francisco Bay Area/Mission Bay 74.6% @ — @
601,611, 651(2, 681, 685, and 701 Gateway Boulevard/San Francisco Bay Area/ 50.0% 853,794
South San Francisco
751 Gateway Boulevard/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisco 49.0% 230,592
2112 and 213 East Grand Avenue/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisco 70.0% 300,930
500 Forbes Boulevard/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisco 90.0% 155,685
Aexandria Centere for Life Science — Millbrae/San Francisco Bay Area/South San Francisc ~ 52.1% — @
o
3215 Memyfield Row/San Diego/Torrey Pines 70.0% 170,523
Campus Point by Alexandria/San Diego/University Town Center(s) 45.0% 1,342,164
5200 lllumina Way/San Diego/University Town Center 49.0% 792,687
9625 Towne Centre Drive/San Diego/University Town Center 70.0% 163,648
SD Tech by Alexandria/San Diego/Sorrento Mesae) 50.0% 798,858
Pacific Technology Park/San Diego/Sorrento Mesa 50.0% 544,352
Summers Ridge Science Park/San Diego/Sorrento Mesa( 70.0% 316,531
1201 and 1208 Eastlake Avenue East/Seattle/Lake Union 70.0% 207,774
199 East Blaine Street/Seattle/Lake Union 70.0% 115,084
400 Dexter Arenue North/Seattle/Lake Union 70.0% 290,754
800 Mercer Street/Seattie/Lake Union 40.0% —
Unconsolidated Real Estate Joint Ventures
PropertyMarket/Submarket Sh’; Olvnersmp %eorgg/?g RSF
1655 and 1725 Third Street/San Francisco Bay Area/Mssion Bay 10.0% 586,208
1401/1413 Research Boulevard/Maryland/Rockuille 65.0% (9)(10) (9)(10)
1450 Research Boulevard/Maryland/Rockville 73.2% (10) 42,679
101 West Dickman Street/Maryland/Beltsville 58.2% (10) 135423

Refer to “Joint venture financial information” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional details.
( Q addltlo?\‘ g)t thhe Cons |dated real estate joint ventures listed, various joint venture partners hold insignificant noncontrolling interests in three other real estate joint
ventures in America.
(2)Represents a pr y curently under construction or in our development and redevelopment pipeline. Refer to “New Class A/A+ development and redev elopment
ies” in Item 2 for additional details.

3)includes 409 and 499 Illinois Street, 1500 and 1700 Owens Street, and 455 Mission Bay Boulevard South

4) Dunnq the nine months ended fember 30, 2024, our equity ownership decreased from 40. 6% 10 25.4% based on continued funding of construction costs by our joint
venture partner and a reallocation equlty to our joint venture partner of $30.2 million from us. The noncontrolling interest share of our joint venture partner

anticipated to increase to 75% and ours to decrease to 25% as our partner contributes additional egglty to fund the oonsterion of the prqect

5)includes 10210, 10260, 10290, and 10300 Campus Point Dﬂveand4110 4135, 4155, 4161 242 Campus Point Court

Slincludes 9005, 9645, 9675, 0728, 9735, 9805 , 9855, and 9868 Scranton Road and 0065 S BI007E B Canyon Road.

7includes 9965, 9975, 9985, and Summers Ridge Road.

8)in addition to the unconsolidated real estate joint ventures listed, we hold an interest in one, |nS|grif|cant unconsolidated real estate joint venture in North America.

92)\/\/9 have executed a purchase and sale agréement to sell the unconsolidated real estat er{omt venture and expect to complete the sale during the fourth warter of 2024.
1 Represemdg eti r{gnt Vteme‘rjltre with a local real estate operator in which our joint venture partner he day-to-day activities that significantly affect the economic

omance joint venture.
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The following table presents keyterms related to our unconsolidated real estate joint ventures’ secured loans as of
September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):

MaturityDate  Stated Rate Interest At 100% Our

I ) Rate(1) Share

Unconsolidated Joint Venture Aggregate Debt Balance(2)
Commitment

1401/1413 Research Boulevard®  12/23/24 2.70% 331% $ 28500 $ 28,461 65.0%
1655 and 1725 Third Street4) 3/10/25 4.50% 457% 600,000 599,823 10.0%
101 West Dickman Street 11/10/26 SOFR+1.95% ) 7.39% 26,750 18,565 58.2%
1450 Research Boulevard 12/10/26 SOFR+1.95% & 7.45% 13,000 8,616 732%

$ 668,250 $ 655465

1)Includes interest expense and amortization of loan fees.

2)Represents outstanding principal, net of ur\amortlzed deferred fm costs, as of September 30, 2024.

3)We have executed a rchase and sale ed real estate joint venture and expect to complete the sale during the fourth quarter of 2024.
r net proceeds from the sale are expected to exceed our share of the outstandlng debt balance and the rTyl amount of this investment as ember 30, 2024.

@) )The unoa-;sdldated real estatejomt venture is in tl;gémces n% prospective lenders to reflnance is debt. In the event that all or a portion of the debt
cannot be refinanced, we may consider contributing additional equity into this uncorsdldated joint venture. As of September 30, 2024, our investment in this

noons olidated real estate joint vent ure was $10 8 mi
5)This loan is subject to a fixed SOFR floor of 0. 75%
e following tables present information related to the operating results and financial positions of our consolidated and

unconsolidated real estate joint ventures as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 (in thousands):

Noncontrolling Interest Share of Our Share of Unconsolidated

Consolidated Real Estate Joint Ventures Real Estate Joint Ventures

September 30, 2024 September 30, 2024

Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended
Total revenues $ 113479 $ 335,786 $ 3141 § 9,472
Rental operations (34,697) (97,009) (965) (2,984)

78,782 238,777 2,176 6,488

General and administrative (586) (2,268) (10) (80)
Interest (284) (753) (952) (2,807)
Depreciation and amortization of real (32,457) (94,725) (1,075) (3,177)
estate assets
Fixed returns allocated to 201 603 — —
redeemable noncontrolling
interests(1)

$ 45656 % 141634 $ 139§ 424
Straight-line rent and below-market  § 54 $ 15588 $ 213 $ 743
lease revenue
Funds from operations(2) $ 78,113 $ 236,359 $ 1214 $ 3,601

Refer to “Joint venture financial information” under “Definitions and reconciliations” in Item 2 for additional details.



(1)Represents an allocation of joint venture _eamilgs to redeemal
redeemable noncontrolling interests eam a fixed retun on their i T r
(2)Refer to “Funds from operations and funds from ions, as adjusted, attributable to
and reconciliations” in Item 2 for the definition and its reconciliation from the most directly

résuits of the

ble noncontralling interests primarily in one property in our South San Francisco submarket. These
investment rather than pam%)ate in the operati
ex

andria Real Estate Equities, Inc.’s co.mr);\'m stockholders” under “Definitions

le financial measure present

As of September 30, 2024

ed in accordance with GAAP.

Noncontrolling Interest
Share of Consolidated
Real Estate Joint Veentures

Our Share of
Unconsolidated
Real Estate Joint Veentures

Investments in real estate

$ 4211942  $ 125,029
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 164,756 3,346
Other assets 425,293 13411
Secured notes payable (36,103) (95,603)
Other liabilities (280,069) (6,013)
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 16,510) —

$ 4469309 $ 40,170

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, our consolidated real estate

oint ventures distributed an

1iilggregate of $179.1 million and $192.7 million, resPectiver, to our joint venture partners. Réfer to our consolidated statements of cash

lows and Note 4 — “Consolidated and unconsolida
Item 1 for additional information.
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Investments

We hold investments in publicly traded companies and privately held entities primarily involved in the life science industrﬁ
tables below summarize components of our investment income (loss) and non-real estate investments (in thousands).

“Investments” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in ltem 1 for additional information.

ptember 30, 2024

Ended

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

ed real estate joint ventures” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in

‘ear
December 31, 2023

Realized gains $ 12632 @ §$ 47336 o $ 6,078 @
Unrealized gains (losses) 2610 © (32,470) @ (201,475) ®
Investrent income (loss) $ 15,242 3 14,866 $ (195,397)

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Investments Cost Unrealized Unrealized Carryin? Carrying Amount

Gains Losses Amoun

Rublicly traded conpanies $ 187,085 $ 50933 § (855%) $ 152426 $ 159,566
Entities that report NAV 527,042 160,608 (31,225) 656,425 671,532
Entities that do not report NAV:
Entities with observable price changes 93,982 72,862 (1,337) 165,507 174,268
Entities without observable price changes 407,261 — — 407,261 368,654
m&es]édnents accounted for under the equity NA NA NA 137,708 75,498
Septenber 30, 2024 $ 1215370 © § 284403 § (118154) § 1519327 § 1,449,518
Decerrber 31, 2023 $ 1,177,072 $ 320445 $  (123497) $ 1,449,518

Public/Private Mix (Cost)

Tenant/Non-Tenant Mix (Cost)

The
efer to Note 7 —



8u7 idity

iquidi

Liquidity Minimal Outstanding Borrowings and
Significant Availability on
Unsecured Senior Line of Credit

(in millions)
$5,000 $5,000 $5,000
[P e TS
- | P Lo |
(In millions) o . Ios100 § 1 8455 || <gp00 |
Availability under our unsecured senior line of credit, netof $ 4,545 i ! — ! | MINIMAL
amounts outstanding under our commercial paper program r , OUTSTANDING
Qutstanding forward equity sales agreements) 28 faisa/23 /30124 1%33;2‘4
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 580 ! Remaining amounts available for borrowing  [lj Outstanding balance under our
Availability under our secured construction loan 51 under our unsecured senior line of credit 22;?“2:2 Is;gi:grr\i;:);: ac:.du and/or
Investrrents in publicly traded conrpanies 152
Liquidity as of Septerrber 30, 2024 $ 5,35

g.l%mmts expected net proceeds from the future settlement of 230 thousand shares of common stock under forward equity sales agreements after underwriter
I .

We expect to meet certain long-term liquidity requirements, such as requirements for development, redevelopment, other

construction projects, capital Improvements, tenant improvements, property acquisitions, leasing costs, non-revenue-enhancing capital
expenditures, scheduled debt maturities, distributions to noncontrolling interests, and payment of dividends through net cash provided
by operating activities, periodic asset sales, strategic real estate joint ventures, long-term secured and unsecured indebtedness,
borrowings under our unsecured senior line of credit, issuances under our commercial paper program, and issuances of additional debt
and/or equity securities. . o . . o .

We also expect to oontlnue_meehn?aour short-term liquidity and capital requirements, as further detailed in this section, .
generally through our working capital and net cash provided by operating activities. We believe that the net cash provided by operating
activities will continue to be sufficient to enable us to make the distributions necessaryto continue qualifying as a REIT.

For additional information on our Iiggidity requirements related to our contractual obligations and commitments, referto

Note 5 —“Leases” and Note 10 — “Secured and unsecured senior debt” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in ltem 1.
Over the next several years, our balance sheet, capital structure, and liquidity objectives are as follows:

*Retain cash flows from operating activities after payment of dividends and distributions to noncontrolling interests for

investment in t;levelogment and redevelopment projects and/or acquisitions;

Maintain significant balance sheet liquidity; )

«Improve credit profile and relative long-term cost of capital;

Maintain diverse sources of capital, including sources from net cash provided by operating activities, unsecured debt,

secured debt, selective real estate asset sales, strategic real estate joint ventures, non-real estate investment sales, and

common stock;

«Maintain commitment to long-term capital to fund growth;

*Maintain prudent laddering of debt maturities;

Maintain solid credit metrics;

*Prudently manage variable-rate debt exposure;

Maintain‘a large, unencumbered asset pool to provide financial flexibility; . . L

*Fund common stock dividends and distributions to noncontrolling interésts from net cash provided byoperahn? activities;

<Manage a disciplined level of development and redevelopment projects as a percentage of our gross real estate assets;

and
*Maintain high levels of pre-leasing and percentage leased in development and redevelopment projects.
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The following table presents the availability under our unsecured senior line of credit, net of amounts outstanding underour
commercial paper program; outstanding forward equity sales agreements; cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash; availability
under our secured construction loan; and investments in publicly traded companies as of September 30, 2024 (in thousands):

Description Stated Rate Aggregate Qutstanding  Remaining
Commitments Balance(1) Eomgjti;ments/
iquidi

Availability under our unsecured senior line of credit, net of SOFR+0.855% $ 5,000,000 $ 454589 $ 4,545,000
amounts outstanding under our commercial paper program

Qutstanding forward equity sales agreements( 27,508
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 579,637
Construction loan SOFR+2.70% $ 195300 $ 144413 50,773
Investments in publicly traded companies 152,426
Liquidityas of September 30, 2024 $ 5355344
g%i%;s%%g Qpﬁtﬁ%&%&@&%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁmf&mﬁm&fg&%w% 's%ggl?'under forward equity sales agreements after underwiter

Cash, cash eguivalents and restricted cash o o .
of September 30, and December 31, 2023, we had $579.6 million and $660.8 million, respectively, of cash, cash

equivalents, and restricted cash. We expect existing cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, net cash provided by operating
activities, proceeds from real estate asset sales, sales of partial interests, strategic real estate joint ventures, non-real estate investment
sales, borrowings under our unsecured senior line of credit, issuances under our commercial paper pro?(ram, issuances of unsecured
senior notes payable, borrowings under our secured construction loans, and issuances of common stock to continue to be sufficient to
fund our operating activities and cash commitments for investing and financing activities, such as (eg;lular quarterly dividends,
distributions to noncontrolling interests, scheduled debt repayments, acquisitions, and certain capital expenditures, including
expenditures related to construction activities.
Cash flows o o .
We report and analyze our cash flows based on operating activities, investing activities, and ﬁnancmg activities. The following
table summarizes changes in our cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 Change
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,230,346 $ 1,201,933 $ 28,413
Net cash used in investing activities $ (1,956,959) $  (2,110,556) $ 153,597

Net cash provided by financing activities $ 645405 $ 618,962 $ 26,443



é’ex_)erating activities

ash flows provided by operat_ing]] activities are primarily dependent upon the occupancy level of our asset base, the rental
rates of our leases, the collectibility of rent and recovery of operating expenses from our tenants, the timing of completion of
development and redevelopment projects, and the timing of ao%uisnions and dispositions of operatin% groperties. Net cash provided by
operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 increased by $28.4 million to $1.23 billion, compared to $1.20 billion
for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily dué to cash flows generated from our development and
redevelopment projects place into senice since January 1, 2023.
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Investing activities
thash usgd)in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following (in
ousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30, Increase (Decrease)
2024 2023
Sources of cash from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of real estate $ 229790 $ 761,321 $ (531,531)
Sales of and distributions from non-real estate investments 141,762 149,299 (7,537)
371,552 910,620 (539,068)
Uses of cash for investing activities:
Purchases of real estate 201,049 257,333 (56,284)
Additions to real estate 1,932,351 2,600,999 (668,648)
Change in escrow deposits 5512 5,982 (470)
Investments in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures 4,039 499 3,540
Additions to non-real estate investments 185,560 156,363 29,197
2,328,511 3,021,176 (692,665)
Net cash used in investing activities $ 1,956,959 $ 2,110,556 $ (153,597)

The decrease in net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the nine

months ended September 30, 2023, was primarily due to a decrease in cash used for real estate purchases and additions, partially
offset by lower proceeds from sales of real estate. Refer to Note 3 — “Investments in real estate” to our unaudited consolidated financial
statements in Item 1 for additional information.

Financing activities
ash flows provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following

(inthousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 Change
Borrowings under secured notes payable $ 24,853 $ 49578 $ (24,725)
Repayments of borrowings under secured notes payable (32) (30) 2)
Proceeds from issuance of unsecured senior notes payable 998,806 996,205 2,601
Borrowings under unsecured senior line of credit — 375,000 (375,000)
Repayments of borrowings under unsecured senior line of credit — (375,000) 375,000
Proceeds from issuances under commercial paper program 7,935,600 1,705,000 6,230,600
Repayments of borrowings under commercial paper program (7,580,600) (1,705,000) (5,875,600)
Payments of loan fees (36,366) (16,047) (20,319)
Changes related to debt 1,342,261 1,029,706 312,555
Contributions from and sales of noncontrolling interests 251,252 436,207 (184,955)
Distributions to and purchases of noncontrolling interests (231,072) (193,716) (37,356)
Dividends on common stock (671,366) (633,032) (38,334)
Taxes paid related to net setlement of equity awards (45,670) (20,203) (25,467)

Net cash provided by financing activities $ 645405 $ 618,962 $ 26,443
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Capital resources

We expect that our principal liquidity needs for the year ending December 31, 2024 will be satisfied by the following multiple .
sources of capital, as shown in the table below. There can be no assurance that our sources and uses of capital will not be materially
higher or lower than these expectations.

Key Sources and Uses of Capital 2024 Guidance Certain

(In"'millions) Completed
Range Mdpoint ltems

Sources of capital:

Incremental debt $ 885 $ 1185 $ 1,035 See below

Net cash provided by operating activities after dividends 400 500 450

Dispositions and common equityt) 1,050 2,050 1,550

Total sources of capital $ 2335 $ 3735 $ 3,035

Uses of capital:

Construction $ 1,950 $ 2550 $ 2,250
Acquisitions 250 750 500 $ 249
Ground lease prepayment(2) 135 135 135
Cash expected to be held at December 31, 2024 — 300 150
Total uses of capital $ 2335 $ 3735 $ 3,035

Incremental debt (included above):

Issuance of unsecured senior notes payable) $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1000 $ 1,000 @

Unsecured senior line of credit, commercial paper program, and other (115) 185 35

Incremental debt $ 885 $ 1,185 $ 1,035

(1)Refer to “Dispositions” in Item 2 for additional detail. We expect to fund our remaining capital reg.]ir_ements for the year ending December 31, 2024 with real estate

dispositions. As of the date of lhﬁ_,r%pon,_v_\e cornrgplgted real estate dispositions aggregating $319.2 million, have additional pending transactions subject to (i) non-

refundable deposits agg i 7.2 million and (ii) executed letters of intent orfurc ase and sale agrreement_s aggregating .5 million and forval rdggjty

sales agreements agq ngrg28 million, which in aggregate, represents 98% of the $1.55 billion midpoint of our guidance range.”We do not expect to issue additional
uity in 2024 beyond t isting forward equity sales agreements outstandi

i
ex .
(2)In"July 2024, e executed an amendment to our existing ground lease agreg%ent at the Alexandria Technology Squares mega campus in our Cambridge submarket,
n('jc?hree?.lirtaﬁ hre‘n w&pél(e}%y our entire rent obligation for the extended lease term aggregating $270.0 million in two equal installments during the fourth quarter of 2024
a Irst quarter X
(3)The incrmge in cash expected to be held at December 31, 2024 is primarily due to changes in the mix and timing of ?erxii‘ng dispositions that are subject to non-
urx{e;lél? der&?sm or subject to exectulfad letters of intent and/or purchase and sale agreements that are expected to close inthe fourth quarter of 2024. This cash is
ex 0 reduce our al needs.
(4R%pr$ajts $1.0 billion of unseccl?rgd senior notes payable issued in February 2024, Subject to market conditions, we may seek additional unities in 2024 to fund
all'or a portion of the proceeds necessary for the repayment of our $600.0 million of 3.45% unsecured senior notes payablé due on April 30, 2025 through the issuance
of additional unsecured senior notes payable that is not assumed in our current 2024 guidanc

e.
The key assumptions behind the sources and uses of capital in the table above include a favorable real estate transaction and
capital market environments, performance of our core operating properties, lease-up and delivery of current and future development
and redevelopment projects, and leasing activity. Our expected sources and uses of capital are subject to a number of variables and
uncertainties, including those discussed as “Forward-looking statements” under Part |; “Iltem 1A Risk factors”; and “ltem 7.
Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations” of our annual report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2023; as well as in “Item 1A Risk factors” within “Part Il — Other information” of this quarterly report on Form 10-
Q We expect to update our forecast for key sources and uses of capital on a quarterly basis.
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Sources of capital

let cash provided by operating activities after dividends . L
We expect fo retain § ﬁﬁ% million to $500 million of net cash flows from operating activities after payment of common stock
dividends, and distributions to noncontrolling interests for the year ending December 31, 2024. For purposes of this calculation,
changes in operating assets and liabilities are excluded as they represent timing differences. For the year ending December 31, 2024,
we expect our recently delivered projects, our highly development and redevelopment projects expected to be delivered, contributions
from Same Properties, and recently acquired income-producing properties to contribute increases in income from rentals, net operatin
income, and cash flows. We anticipate contractual near-term growth in annual net operating income (cash basis) of $57 million relate
to the commencement of contractual rents on the projects recently placed into senice that are near the end of their initial free rent
eriod. Refer to “Cash flows” in Item 2 for a discussion of cash flows provided by operating activities for the nine months ended
Deé%ttember 30, 2024.
We expect to fund a portion of our capital needs for 2024 from issuances under our commercial paper program, issuances of
unsetou;?_d slemor notes payable, borrowings under our unsecured senior line of credit, and/or borrowings under our secured
construction loan.
As of September 30, 2024, our unsecured senior line of credit had aggregate commitments of $5.0 billion and bore an interest
rate of SOFR plus 0.855%. In addition to the cost of borrowing, the unsecured senior line of credit is subject to an annual facility fee of
0.145% based on the aggregate commitments outstanding. Based upon our ability to achieve certain annual sustainability targets, the
interest rate and facility fee rate are also subject to upward or downward adjustments of up to four basis points with respect to the
interest rate and up to'one basis point with respect to the facility fee rate. o )
Based on certain sustainability metrics achieved in accordance with the terms of our unsecured senior line of credit
agreement, the borrowing rate was reduced for a one-year dpenod by two basis points to SOFR plus 0.855%, from SOFR plus 0.875%,
and the facility fee was reduced by 0.5 basis pointto 0.145% from 0.15%. As of September 30, 2024, we had no outstanding balance
on our unsecured line of credit. o )
In September 2024, we amended and restated our unsecured senior line of credit to, among other changes, extend the
maturity date from January 22, 2028 to January 22, 2030, including extension options that we control.
Our commercial paper program provides us with the ability to issue up to $2.5 billion of commercial paper notes with a maturity
of generally 30 days or less and with a maximum maturity of 397 days from the date of issuance. Our commercial paper program is
backed by our unsecured senior line of credit, and at all times we expect to retain a minimum undrawn amount of borrowing capacity
under our unsecured senior line of credit equal to anﬁ;utstandlng balance under our commercial paper program. We use borrowings
under the program to fund short-term capital needs. The notes issued under our commercial paper program are sold under customary



terms in the commercial paper market. They are typically issued at a discount to par, representing a yield to maturity dictated by market
conditions at the time of issuance. In the event we are unable to issue commercial paper notes or refinance outstanding commercial
paper notes under terms equal to or more favorable than those under the unsecured senior line of credit, we expect to borrow under the
unsecured senior line of credit. The commercial paper notes sold during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 were issued ata
weighted-average yield to maturity of 5.55%. As of September 30, 2024, we had an outstanding balance of $454.6 million under our
commercial 2pazper program with a weighted-average interest rate of 5.05%. . .

In February 2024, we issued $1.0 billion of unsecured senior notes payable with a weighted-average interest rate of 5.48%

anda weighted-avera%e maturity of 23.1 years. The unsecured senior hotes consisted of $400.0 million of 5.25% unsecured senior
notes due 2036 and $600.0 million of 5.625% unsecured senior notes due 2054.
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The following table Presents our average debt outstanding and weighted-average interest rates during the three and nine

months ended September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):
Average Debt Outstanding Weighted-Average Interest Rate
September 30, 2024 September 30, 2024
Three Months Nine Months Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
Long-term fixed-rate debt $ 12,171,936 $ 12,008,857 3.79% 3.76%
Short-term variable-rate unsecured senior 545,848 471,070 548 557
line of credit and commercial paper
program debt
Blended average interest rate 12,717,784 12,479,927 3.86 3.83
Loan fee amortization and annual facilityfee N/A N/A 0.12 0.13
related to unsecured senior line of credit
Total/weighted average $ 12,717,784 $ 12,479,927 3.98% 3.96%

Real estate dispositions and issuances. of common equity . . .
expect to confinue to focus on the disciplined execution of select sales of real estate. Future sales will provide an important

source of capital to fund a portion of penduﬂ]and recently completed acquisitions and our development and redevelopment projects,
and also provide significant capital for growth. For the year ending December 31, 2024, we expect real estate dispositions and
issuances of common equity to range from $1.1 billion to $2.1 billion. The amount of asset sales necessaryto meet our forecasted
sources of capital will vary depending upon the amount of EBITDAassociated with the assets sold.
Refer to Note 3 — “Investments in real estate,” Note 4 — “Consolidated and unconsolidated real estate joint ventures,” and
Note 13 — “Stockholders’ equity’ to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1 and to “Dispositions” in Item 2 for
additional information on our real estate dispositions. . .
As a REIT, we are enerallw:ubject to a 100% taxon the netincome from real estate asset sales that the IRS characterizes as .
“prohibited transactions.” We do not expect our sales will be categorized as J)I’Ohlblted transactions. However, unless we meet certain
“safe harbor” requirements, whether a real estate asset sale is a “prohibited transaction” will be based on the facts and circumstances
of the sale. Our real estate asset sales may not always meet such “safe harbor” requirements. Refer to “ltem 1A Risk factors” of our
annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 for additional information about the “prohibited transaction” tax.
Common equity transactions
DurinP the three months ended June 30, 2024, we entered into new forward equity sales agreements ag%regatiné; $28 million
to sell’230 thousand shares of common stock under our ATMprogram at an average price of $122.32 (before underwriting discounts).
é? 2f7 Sbe I'tember 30, 2024, the remaining aggregate amount available under our ATM program for future sales of common stock was

A7 billion.
Other sources . . . " ) .
As a well-known seasoned issuer, we may, from time to time, issue securities at our discretion based on our needs and market
conditions, including, as necessary, to balance our use of incremental debt capital.
Additionally, we, to?s ther with joint venture partners, hold interests in real 'estate.{gint ventures that we consolidate in our
financial sfatements. These existing joint ventures provide significant equity capital to fund a portion of our future construction spend,
and our joint venture partners may also contribute equity into these entities for financing-related activities. From October 1, 202:
through December 31, 2027, we éxpect to receive capital contributions aggre%atm $1.0 billion from existing consolidated real estate
joint venture partners to fund construction. During the year ending December 31, 2024, contributions from noncontrolling interests from
existing joint venture partners are expected to aggregate $430.0 million.



Uses of cap]ital
ummary of capital expenditures ! . .
e of our |pnmary uses of capital relates to the development, redevelopment, pre-construction, and construction of ﬂopemes.

We currently have projects in our development and redevelopment piFeIine aggregating 5.3 million RSF of Class A/A+ properties
undergoing construction, one committed near-term project expected to commence construction in the next two years, and 1.9 million
RSF of priority anticipated development and redevelopment projects. We incur capitalized construction costs related to development,
redevelo%ment, pre-construction, and other construction activities. We also incur additional capitalized project costs, including interest,
property taxes, insurance, and other costs directly related and essential to the development, redevelopment, pre-construction, or
construction of a project, during periods when activities necessaryto Frepare an asset for its intended use are in progress. Refer to
“New Class A/A+ development and redevelopment properties: cufrent projects” and “Summary of capital expenditures” in Item 2 for
more information on our capital expenditures. . o . L

We capitalize interest cost as a cost of the project only during the period in which activities necessaryto prepare an asset for

its intended use are ongoing, provided that expenditures for the asset have been made and interest cost has been incurred. Capitalized
interest for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 of $249.4 million and $274.9 million, respectively, was classified in
investments in real estate in our consolidated balance sheets. The decrease in capitalized interest was related to a lower weighted-
average capitalized cost basis of $8.1 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, as compared to $9.6 billion for the nine
months ended September 30, 2023, partiall&oﬁ’set by an increase in weighted-average interest rate used to capitalize interest to 3.96%
for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 from 3.74% for the nine months ended September 30, 2023.

Property taxes, insurance on real estate, and indirect project costs, such as construction, administration, legal fees, and office

costs that clearly relate to projects under development or construction, are capitalized as incurred during the period an asset is
undergoing activities to prepare it for its intended use. We capitalized payroll and other indirect costs related to development,
redevelopment, pre-construction, and construction projects, agilgregatm%$76.8 million and $74.5 million, and property taxes, insurance
on éez%l 2esstate, aré% |n|d|rect project costs aggregating §96.5 million'and $96.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024
an , respectively.

The decrease in our capitalized costs for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023, =~

was primarily driven by a reduction in the average real estate basis of our development and redevelopment pipeline following significant
deliveries in 2023, most of which were placed into senice during the fourth quarter of 2023. Pre-construction activities include
entitements, permitting, design, site work, and other activities preceding commencement of construction of aboveground building
improvements. The advancement of pre-construction efforts is focused on reducing the time required to deliver pr(r)gects to prospective
tenants. These critical activities add significant value for future ground-up development and are required for the verfical construction of
buildings. Should we cease activities necessar)é}o prepare an asset for its intended use, the interest, taxes, insurance, and certain
other direct and indirect project costs related to the asset would be expensed as incurred. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are expensed as incurred. . L o

Fluctuations in our development, redevelopment, and construction activities could result in significant changes to total

expenses and netincome. For example, had we experienced a 10% reduction in development, redevelopment, and construction
activities without a corresponding decrease in indirect project costs, mcludlné; interest and payroll, total expenses would have increased
by approximately $42.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. . .

We use third-party brokers to assist in our leasing activity, who are paid on a contingent basis upon successful leasing. We are
required to capitalize initial direct costs related to successful leasing transactions that result directly from and are essential to the lease
transaction and would not have been incurred had that lease transaction not been successfully executed. During the nine months
ended September 30, 2024, we capitalized total initial direct leasing costs of $67.0 million. Costs that we incur to negotiate or arrange a
lease regardless of its outcome, such as fixed employee compensation, tax, or legal advice to negotiate lease terms, and other costs,
are expensed as incurred.
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Acquisitions

During the nine months ended Seg ember 30, 2024, the purchase price of our completed acquisitions aggregated

$201.8 million. As of September 30, 2024, the total purchase E]rioe of our pending acquisitions under executed letters of intent and/or
purchase and sale agreements expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2024 and in 2025 a%gregated $47.6 million and $47.8
million, respectively. In October 2024, we completed one acquisition pending as of September 30, 2024 for a purchase price of $47.6
million. For additional information, refer to Note 16 — “Subsequent events” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in ltem 1.
For the year ending December 31, 2024, we expect real estate acquisitions to range from $250 million to $750 million.

Refer to “Acquisitions” in Note 3 —“Investments in real estate” and to Note 4 — “Consolidated and unconsolidated real estate

joint \./e.rgitures" to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in ltem 1, and “Acquisitions” in ltem 2 for information on our
acquisitions.

Dividends

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, we paid common stock dividends of $671.4 million and

$633.0 million, resiaecti\,ely. The increase of $38.3 million in dividends gaid on our common stock during the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2023, was primarilydue to anincrease in the number of
common shares outstanding subsequent to January 1, 2023 as a result of settled forward equity sales azqreements, and an increase in
the related dividends paid to $3.84 per common share during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 from $3.66 per common
share during the nine months ended September 30, 2023.

Secured notes payable . .

ecured notes payable as of September 30, 2024 consisted of three notes secured by two properties. Our secured notes
payable typically require monthly gagnents of principal and interest and had a weighted-average interest rate of approximately 8.39%.
As’of September 30, 2024, the total book value of our investments in real estate securing debtwas approximately $364.3 million. As of
September 30, 2024, our secured notes payable, including unamortized discounts and deferred financing costs, comprised
approxlmatelyé$587 thousand and $144.4 million of fixed-rate debt and unhedged variable-rate debt, respectively.
As of September 30, 2024, our unconsolidated real estate joint venture, in which we hold a 10% ownership interest, located at



1655 and 1725 Third Street in our Mission Bay submarket, has a $600.0 million secured loan outstanding maturing on March 10, 2025.
The unconsolidated real estate joint venture is in the process of workln%wn.th prospective lenders to refinance this debt. In the event that
all ct>r a portion of the debt cannot be refinanced, we may consider contributing additional equity into this unconsolidated real estate joint
venture.
Unsecured senior notes szazable and unsecured senior line of credit . .

e requirements of, and our actual performance with respect to, the keyfinancial covenants under our unsecured senior

notes payable as of September 30, 2024 were as follows:

Covenant Ratios(1) Requirement September 30, 2024
Total Debt to Total Assets Less than or equal to 60% 30%

Secured Debt to Total Assets Less than or equal to 40% 0.3%

Consolidated EBITDA®) to Interest Expense Greater than or equal to 1.5x 12.3x
Unencumbered Total Asset Value to Unsecured Debt Greater than or equal to 150% 326%

1)All covenant ratio titles utilize terms as defined in the respective debt agreements. . X .

2)The calculation of consolidated EBITDA is based on the definitions contained in our loan agreements and is not directly comparable to the computation of EBITDA as
described in Exchange Act Release No. 47226. i L . . »

In addition, the terms of the indentures, among other things, limit the ability of the Company, Aexandria Real Estate Equities,

L.P., and the Company's subsidiaries to (3 consummate a merger, or consolidate or sell all or substantiallyall of the Company's assets,
and (i) incur certain secured or unsecured indebtedness.
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The req(uirements of, and our actual performance with respect to, the key financial covenants under our unsecured senior line
of credit as of September 30, 2024 were as follows:

Covenant Ratios(1 Requirement September 30, 2024
Leverage Ratio Less than or equal to 60.0% 29.7%

Secured Debt Ratio Less than or equal to 45.0% 0.3%

Fixed-Charge Coverage Ratio Greater than or equal to 1.50x 3.95x

Unsecured Interest Coverage Ratio Greater than or equal to 1.75x 12.55x

E)AII covenant ratio titles utilize terms as defined in the credit agreement.
stimated interest payments ) ) o

stimated interest payments on our fixed-rate debt are calculated based upon contractual interest rates, including interest
payment dates and scheduled maturity dates. As of September 30, 2024, 95.3% of our debt was fixed-rate debt. For additional
information regarding our debt, refer to Note 10 — “Secured and unsecured senior debt” to our unaudited consolidated financial

statements |n?te 1.

Ground lease obligations . . )

round lease obligations as of September 30, 2024 included leases for 36 of our properties and accounted for approximatel
9% of our total number of properties. Among these 36 properties, 17 properties are subject to ground leases with a weighted-average
remaining lease term of 41 years, including extension options that we are reasonably certain to exercise. These leases are with a single
lessor in our Greater Stanford submarket, with whom we have extended three ground leases over the past 10 years.
Our remaining 19 properties subject to ground leases are located across mulfiple submarkets and have remalnlng7lease terms
ranging from approximately 46 to 97 years. The weighted-average remaining lease term of these ground leases is 70 years, including
extension options that we are reasonably certain to exercise. ) o
In many cases, we seek to extend our ground leases well ahead of their scheduled contractual expirations. If we are
successful in extending ground leases, we could see significant up-front or increased recurring future payments to the ground lessor
and/or increased ground lease expense, which may require us to increase our capital funding needs.

%eratmg lease aﬁreements . . .
of September e remaining contractual payments under ground and office lease agreements in which we are the

|
lessee aggregated $1.1 billion and $25.3 million, r.espectivel%/._As of September 30, 2024, our operating lease liability, calculated as the
present value of the remaining payments aggregating $1.1 billion under our operating lease agreements, including our extension
options that we are reasonably certain to exercise, was $648.3 million, which was classified in‘accounts payable, accrued expenses,
and other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. As of September 30, 2024, the we|ghted-avera%e remaining lease term of
operating leases in which we are the lessee was approximately 49 years, including extension options that we are reasonably certain to
exercise, and the weighted-average discount rate was 5.1%. Our oorrespon_dln? ogeratlng lease right-of-use assets, adjusted for initial
direct leasing costs and other consideration exchanged with the landlord prior fo the commencement of the lease, aggregated $776.7
million. We d assﬂgthe right-of-use asset in other assets in our consolidated balance sheets. Refer to “Lease accounting” in Note 2 —
“Summary of significant accounting policies” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in ltem 1 for additional information.
Included in the aforementioned September 30, 2024 balances is the ground lease recorded in July 2024 upon our execution of

an amendment to our existing gf(round lease agreement at the Alexandria Technology Square® mega campus a%%reé;ating 1.2 million
RSF in our Cambridge submarket, which extended the term by 24 years from January 1, 2065 to December 31, 2088. The amendment
requires that we prepay our entire rent obligation for the extended lease term aggregating $270.0 million in two equal installments
during the fourth quarter of 2024 and the first quarter of 2025. Alexandria Technology Square®is a foundational mega campus in the
heart of the global life science ecosystem in Cambridge and is the Greater Boston base of operations of key strategic tenants such as
Novartis AG, GlaxoSmithKline plc, Massachusetts Insfitute of Technology, and Mass General Brigham. Securing this ground lease
through December 2088 significantly enhances the long-term value of our investment in this critical mega campus.
Commitments . . . )

of September 30, 2024, remaining aggregate costs under contract for the construction of properties undergoing
development, redevelopment, and improvements under the terms of leases approximated $1.3 billion. We expect payments for these
obligations to occur over one to three years, sugject to capital planning adjustments from time to time. We may have the ability to cease
the construction of certain projects, which would result in the reduction of our commitments.
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As of September 30, 2024, the purchase price of pending acquisitions under executed letters of intent and/or purchase and

sale agreements exgected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2024 and in 2025, a%%rezz%ated $47.6 million and $47.8 million,
respectively. In October 2024, we completed one acquisition pending as of September 30, 2024 for a purchase price of $47.6 million.
For additional information, refer to Note 16 — “Subsequent events” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Item 1. In
addition, we have letters of credit and performance obligations aggregating $29.5 million primarily related to our development and
redevelopment projects.

We are committed to funding approximately $406.0 million related to our non-real estate investments. These funding

commitments are primarily associated with our investments in privately held entities that refort NAVand expire at various dates over
the next 12 years, with a weighted-average expiration of 8.1 years as of September 30, 2024.

In July 2024, we executed an amendment to our existing ground lease agreement at the Alexandria Technology Square® mega
campus in our Cambridge submarket, which reg]uires that we I_Frepa our entire rent obligation for the extended lease term aggregating
$270.0 million in two equal installments during the fourth quarter of 2024 and the first quarter of 2025. Refer to “Operating lease
agreements” above for additional details.

posure to environmental liabilities . . . .
n connection with the acquisition of all of our properties, we have obtained Phase | environmental assessments to ascertain

the existence of any environmental liabilities or other issues. The Phase | environmental assessments of our properties have not
revealed any environmental liabilities that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of
operations taken as a whole, nor are we aware of any material environmental liabilities that have occurred since the Phase |
environmental assessments were completed. In addition, we carry a policy of pollution legal liabilityinsurance covering exposure to
certain environmental losses at substantially all of our properties.

Forei%n currencg translation %a/ns and losses . . .
e following table Eresents the change in accumulated other comprehensive loss attributable to Aexandria Real Estate

Equities, Inc.’s stockholders durin%; the nine months ended September 30, 2024 primarily due to the changes in the foreign exchange
rates for our real estate investments in Canada (in thousands). We reclassify unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses
into netincome as we dispose of these holdings.

Total
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ (15,896)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (6,758)
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in netincome 125
Net other comprehensive loss (6,633)
Balance as of September 30, 2024 $ (22,529)

Inflation

As of September 30, 2024, approximately 93% of our leases (on an annual rental revenue basis) were triple net leases, which

require tenants to pay substantially all real estate taxes, insurance, utilities, repairs and maintenance, common area expenses, and
other operating expenses (including increases thereto) in addition to base rent. Abpproximately 96% of our leases (on an annual rental
revenue basis) contained effective annual rent escalations approximating 3% that were either fixed or indexed based on a consumer
price indexor other indices. Accordingly, we do not believe that our cash flows or eamings from real estate operations are subject to
significant risks from inflation. A period of inflation, however, could cause an increase in the cost of our variable-rate borrowings,
including borrowings under our unsecured senior line of credit and commercial paper Program, issuances of unsecured senior notes
payable, and borrowings under our secured construction loans, and secured loans held by our unconsolidated real estate joint ventures.
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Issuer and guarantor subsidiary summarized financial information " . "

Aexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc. (the “Issuer”) has sold certain debt securities registered under the Securities Act of 1933,

as amended, that are fullyand unconditionally guaranteed by Aexandria Real Estate Equities, L.P. (the “LP” or the “Guarantor
Subsidiary’), an indirectly 100% owned subsidiary of the Issuer. The Issuer’s other subsidiaries, including, but not limited to, the
subsidiaries that own substantiallyall of its real estate (collectively, the “Combined Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”), will not providea
guarantee of such securities, including the subsidiaries that are partially or 100% owned ba/the LP. The following summarized financial
information presents, on a combined basis, balance sheet information as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and results
of operations and comprehensive income for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and year ended December 31, 2023 for the
Issuer and the Guarantor Subsidiary. The information presented below excludes eliminations necessary to arrive at the information on a
consolidated basis. In presenting the summarized financial statements, the equity method of accounting has been applied to (i) the
Issuer’s interests in the Guarantor Subsidiary, (i) the Guarantor Subsidiary's interests in the Combined Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries,
and (jii) the Combined Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries’ interests in the Guarantor Subsngila!?/,.where applicable, even though all such
subsidiaries meet the requirements to be consolidated under GAAP. All assets and liabilities have been allocated to the Issuer and the
Guarantor Subsidiary generally based on legal entity ownership.

The following tables Fresent combined summarized financial information as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

and for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and year ended December 31, 2023 for the Issuer and Guarantor Subsidiary.



Amounts provided do not represent our total consolidated amounts (in thousands):
September 30, 2024 December 31,2023

Assets:
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 143,087 $ 210,755
Other assets 151,170 115,373
Total assets $ 294,257 $ 326,128
Liabilities:
Unsecured senior notes payable $ 12,092,012 $ 11,096,028
Unsecured senior line of credit and commercial paper 454,589 99,952
Other liabilities 548,982 504,659
Total liabilities $ 13,095,583 $ 11,700,639
Nine Months Ended  Year Ended
September 30,2024 December 31,2023
Total revenues $ 42358 $ 54,230
Total expenses (263,299) (273,990)
Netloss (220,941) (219,760)
Netincome attributable to unvested restricted stock awards (10,717) (11,195)
Net loss attributable to Aexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc.'s common stockholders ~ § (231,658) $ (230,955)

As of September 30, 2024, 391 of our 406 properties were held indirectly by the REIT's wholly owned consolidated subsidiary,
Aexandria Real Estate Equities, L.P.

Critical accountin? estimates ) . » .

Refer to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 for a discussion of our critical accounting

estimates related to recog%mtlon of real estate acquired, impairment of long-lived assets, impairment of non-real estate investments, and
monitoring of tenant credit quality.
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Definitions and reconciliations

This section contains additional information on certain non-GAAP financial measures, including reconciliations to the most
directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP and the reasons why we use these
supplemental measures of performance and believe they provide useful information to investors, as well as the definitions of other
terms used in this report.

Flt.mds from operations and funds from operations, as adjusted, attributable to Alexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc.'s common
stockholders

-basis accounting for real estate assets utilizes historical cost accounting and assumes that real estate values diminish
over time. In an effort to overcome the difference between real estate values and historical cost accounting for real estate assets, the
Nareit Board of Governors established funds from operations as an improved measurement tool. Since its introduction, funds from
operations has become a widely used non-GAAP financial measure among equity REITs. We believe that funds from operations is
helpful to investors as an additional measure of the performance of an equity REIT. Moreover, we believe that funds from operations, as
adjusted, allows investors to compare our performance to the performance of other real estate companies on a consistent basis, without
having to account for differences recognized because of real estate aoqtu!smon and disposition decisions, financing decisions, capital
structure, capital market transactions, variances resulting from the volatility of market conditions outside of our control, or other
corporate activities that may not be ref;])resentative of the operating performance of our properties.
The 2018 White Paper published by the Nareit Board of Governors (the “Nareit White Pa el’? defines funds from operations as
netincome (computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains or losses on sales of real estate, and impairments of real estate, plus
depreciation and amortization of operating real estate assets, and after ad{ustments for our share of consolidated and unconsolidated
partnerships and real estate joint ventures. Impairments represent the write-down of assets when fair value over the recoverability
period is less than the carrying value due to changes in general market conditions and do not necessarily reflect the operating

erformance of the Prropertles during the corresponding period. . . ) o
compute funds from operations, as adjusted, as funds from operations calculated in accordance with the Nareit \White

Paper, excluding significant gains, losses, and impairments realized on non-real estate investments, unrealized gains or losses on non-
real estate investments, impairment of real estate primarily consisting of pre-acquisition costs incurred in connection with acquisitions
we decided to no longer pursue, gains or losses on early éxtinguishment of debt, significant termination fees, acceleration of stock
compensation expense due to the resignations of executive officers, deal costs, the income tax effect related to such items, and the
amount of such items that is allocable o our unvested restricted stock awards. We compute the amount that is allocable to our
unvested restricted stock awards using the two-class method. Under the two-class method, we allocate netincome (after amounts
attributable to noncontrolling |nterests?to common stockholders and to unvested restricted stock awards by applying the respective
weighted-average shares outstanding during each quarter-to-date and year-to-date period. This may resulfin a difference of the
summation of the quarter-to-date an g/ear—t(_)—date amounts. Neither funds from operations nor funds from operations, as adjusted,
should be considered as alternatives fo net income (determined in accordance with GAAP) as indications of financial performance, or to
cash flows from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) as measures of liquidity, nor are they indicative of the
availability of funds for our cash needs, including our ability to make distributions. . .
The following table reconciles netincome to funds from operations for the share of consolidated real estate joint ventures
attributable to noncontrolling interests and our share of unconsolidated real estate joint ventures for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024 (in thousands):

Noncontrolling Interest Share of QOur Share of Unconsolidated

Consolidated Real Estate Joint Ventures Real Estate Joint Ventures

September 30, 2024 September 30, 2024

Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended ~ Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended
Netincome $ 45656 $ 141,634 $ 139 $ 424
Depreciation and amortization of 32,457 94,725 1,075 3,177

real estate assets
Funds from operations $ 78113 $ 236,359 $ 1214 $ 3,601
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The following tables present a reconciliation of net income attributable to Alexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc.'s common

stockholders, the most directly comparable financial measure presented in accordance with GAAP, mcludmg our share of amounts from
consolidated and unconsolidated real estate joint ventures, to funds from operations attributable to Alexandria Real Estate Equities,
Inc.’'s common stockholders — diluted, and funds from operat|ons attributable to Alexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc.’'s common
stockholders — diluted, as adjusted, and the related per share amounts for the three and nine months ended September 30,2024 and
2023 (in thousands, e)c;ept per share amounts). Per share amounts may not add due to rounding.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Net income attributable to Alexandria Real Estate Equities, $ 164,674 $ 21,855 $ 374477 $ 184,371
Inc.’'s common stockholders — basic and diluted

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 291,258 266,440 864,326 798,590

Noncontrolling share of depreciation and amortization from (32,457) (28,814) (94,725) (85,212)
consolidated real estate JVs

Our share of depreciation and amortization from 1,075 910 3177 2,624

unconsolidated real estate JVs

Gain on sales of real estate (27,114) — (27,506) (214,810)
Impairment of real estate — rental properties and land 5741 () 19,844 7,923 () 186,446

Allocation to unvested restricted stock awards (2,908) (838) (7,657) (3,050)
Funds from operations attributable to Alexandria Real Estate 400,269 279,397 1,120,015 868,959

Equities, Inc.’s common stockholders — diluted2)

Unrealized (gains) losses on non-real estate investments (2,610) 77,202 32,470 220,954

Impairment of non-real estate investments 10,338 © 28,503 37,824 51,456

Impairment of real estate — 805 28,581 2,778

Acceleration of stock compensation expense due to — 1,859 — 1,859

executive officer resignations

Allocation to unvested restricted stock awards (125) (1,330) (1,640) (3,503)

Funds from operations attributable to Alexandria Real Estate $§ 407,872 $ 386436 $ 1,217,250 $ 1,142,503

E uities, Inc.’s common stockholders — diluted, as
adjusted

(1 Re(f;;ltorﬁSaI% of real estate assets and impairment charges” in Note 3 — “Investments in real estate” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Ttem 1 for

;%]Calculated in accordarx;e with standards established by the Nareit Board of Govemnors

Primarily related to two non-real estate |nv$tments in’ pnvately held entities that do not report NAV. Refer to Note 7 — “Investments” to our unaudited consolidated
inancial statements in Item 1 for additional informati
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Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
(Per share) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Netincome per share atiributable to Aexandria Real Estate  $ 0.96 $ 013 $ 2.18 $ 1.08
Equities, Inc.'s common stockholders — diluted
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 1.51 140 449 419
Gain on sales of real estate (0.16) — (0.16) (1.26)
Impairment of real estate — rental properties and land 0.03 0.12 0.05 1.09
Allocation to unvested restricted stock awards (0.01) (0.01) (0.05) (0.01)
Funds from tl._;perations per share attributable to Alexandria 2.33 164 6.51 5.09
Real Estate Equities, Inc.’'s common stockholders — diluted
Unrealized (gains) losses on non-real estate investments (0.02) 0.45 0.19 1.29
Impairment of non-real estate investments 0.06 0.17 0.22 0.30
Impairment of real estate — — 0.17 0.02
Acceleration of stock compensation expense due to — 0.01 — 0.01
executive officer resignations
Allocation to unvested restricted stock awards — (0.01) (0.01) (0.02)
Funds from %per_aﬁons per share attributable to Aexandria 237 % 226 § 708 § 6.69
Real Estate Equities, Inc.’'s common stockholders —
diluted, as adjusted
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding — 172,058 170,890 172,007 170,846

diluted(n
(1)Refer to “Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding — diluted” in this section for additional information.
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Adjusted EBITDAand Adjusted EBITDA margllin

We use Adjusted EBITDAas a supplemental performance measure of our operations, for financial and operational decision-

making, and as a supplemental means of evaluating period-to-period comparisons on a consistent basis. Adjusted EBITDAIs calculated

as eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (‘EBITDA’), excluding stock compensation expense, gains or losses
on eaﬂyemn%whment of debt, gains or losses on sales of real estate, impairments of real estate, and significant termination fees.
Adjusted EBITDAalso excludes unrealized gains or losses and significant realized gains or losses and impairments that result from our
non-real estate investments. These non-real estate investment amounts are classified in our consolidated statements of operations
outside of total revenues. o . . . . .

We believe Adjusted EBITDA provides investors with relevant and useful information as it allows investors to evaluate the

operating performance of our business activities without having to account for differences recognized because of investing and

financing decisions related to our real estate and non-real estate investments, our capital structure, capital market transactions, and
variances resulting from the volatility of market conditions outside of our control. For example, we exclude gains or losses on the early
extinguishment of debt to allow investors to measure our performance independent of our indebtedness and capital structure. We
believe that adjusting for the effects of im#girments and gains or losses on sales of real estate, sitt;oniﬁcant impairments and realized
gains or losses on non-real estate investments, and significant termination fees allows investors to evaluate performance from period to
lpenod on a consistent basis without having to account for differences recognized because of investing and financing decisions related

0 our real estate and non-real estate investments or other corporate activities that may not be representative of the operating
Perforr_n_ance of our properties. . . . .

In addition, we believe that excluding charges related to stock compensation and unrealized gains or losses facilitates for

investors a comparison of our business activities across rPeHOdS without the volatility resulting from market forces outside of our control.
Adjusted EBITDAas limitations as a measure of our performance. Adjtssted'EBlTDAdoes not reflect our historical expenditures or
future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments. While Adjusted EBITDAIs a relevant measure of performance,
it does not represent net moome.(loss? or cash flows from operations calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, and it should
not be considered as an alternative to those indicators in evaluating performance or liquidity.

In order to calculate the Adjusted EBITDAmargin, we divide Adjusted EBITDAby total revenues as presented inour .
consolidated statements of operations. We believe that this supplemental performance measure provides investors with additional
useful information regardln? he profitability of our operating activities. ) o

We are not able to forecast fourth quarter netincome without unreasonable effort and therefore do not provide a reconciliation

for Adjusted EBITDAon a forward-looking basis. This is due to the inherent difficulty of forecasting the iming and/or amount of items

that depend on market conditions outside of our control, including the timing of dispositions, capital events, and financing decisions, as
well as quarterly components such as gain on sales of real estate, unrealized gains or losses on non-real estate investments,
impairment of real estate, and impairment of non-real estate investments. Our attempt to predict these amounts may produce significant
butinaccurate estimates, which would be potentially misleading for our investors.
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The following table reconciles netincome (loss), the most diregt‘l}lcomparable financial measure calculated and presented in
accordance with GAAP, to Adjusted EBITDAand calculates the Adjusted EBITDAmargin for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Netincome $ 213,603 $ 68,254 $ 526,828 $ 323,652
Interest expense 43,550 11411 130,179 42,237
Income taxes 1,877 1,183 4,823 4,565
Depreciation and amortization 293,998 269,370 872,272 808,227
Stock compensation expense 15,525 16,288 47,157 48,266
Gain on sales of real estate (27,114) — (27,506) (214,810)
Unrealized (gains) losses on non-real estate investments (2,610) 77,202 32,470 220,954
Impairment of real estate 5,741 20,649 36,504 189,224
Impairment of non-real estate investments 10,338 28,503 37,824 51,456
Adjusted EBITDA $ 554,908 $ 492,860 $ 1,660,551 $ 1,473,771
Total revenues $ 791,607 $ 713,788 $ 2327449 $§ 2128483
Adjusted EBITDAmargin 70% 69% 1% 69%

Annual rental revenue

Annual rental revenue represents the annualized fixed base rental obligations, calculated in accordance with GAAP, including

the amortization of deferred revenue related to tenant-funded and -built landlord improvements, for leases in effect as of the end of the
period, related to our operating RSF. Annual rental revenue is presented using 100% of the annual rental revenue from our consolidated
properties and our share of annual rental revenue for our unconsolidated real estate joint ventures. Annual rental revenue per RSF is
computed by dividing annual rental revenue by the sum of 100% of the RSF of our consolidated properties and our share of the RSF of
pro%ertles held in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures. As of September 30, 2024, alppronmately 93% of our leases (on an annual
rental revenue basis ) were friple net leases, which require tenants to pay substantially all real estate taxes, insurance, utilities, repairs
and maintenance, common area expenses, and other operating expenses (including increases thereto) in addition to base rent. Annual
rental revenue excludes these ogeratmg expenses recovered from our tenants. Amounts recovered from our tenants related to these
operating expenses, along with base rent, are classified in income from rentals in our consolidated statements of operations.

apitalization rates

apitalization rates are calculated based on net operating income and net operating income (cash basis) annualized,
excluding lease termination fees, on stabilized operating assets for the quarter preceding the date on which the propertyis sold, or
near-term prospective net operating income.
Capitalized interest
We capitalize interest cost as a cost of a project during periods for which activities necessary to develop, redevelop, or
reposition a project for its intended use are ongoing, provided that expenditures for the asset have been made and interest cost has
been incurred. Activities necessary to develop, redevelop, or reposition a project include pre-construction activities such as
entiiements, permitting, design, site work, and other activities preceding commencement of construction of aboveground building
improvements. The advancement of pre-construction efforts is focused on reducing the time required to deliver pr?g.ects to prospective
tenants. These critical activities add significant value for future ground-up development and are required for the vertical construction of
bw!dmgs.(ljf we cease activities necessary to prepare a project for its intended use, interest costs related to such project are expensed
as incurred.
Cash interest . . ) o o
Cash interestis equal to interest expense calculated in accordance with GAAP plus capitalized interest, less amortization of
loan fees and debt premiums (discounts). Refer to “Fixed-charge coverage ratio” in this section for a reconciliation of interest expense,
the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, to cash interest.
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Class A/At+ properties and AAAlocations



Class A/A+ properties are properties clustered in AMlocations that provide innovative tenants with highly dynamic and .
collaborative environments that enhance their ability to successfully recruit and retain world-class talent and inspire productivity,
efficiency, creativity, and success. Class A/A+ properties generally command higher annual rental rates than other classes of similar
Broperties. AAAlocations are in close proximity to concentrations of specialized skills, knowledge, institutions, and related businesses.

evelopment redevelo%ment and pre-construction . .
ey component of our business model is our disciplined allocation of capital to the development and redevelopment of new

Class A/At+ properties, and property enhancements identified during the underwriting of certain acquired properties, located in

collaborative mega campuses in AAAlife science innovation clusters. These dprojects are generalB/focused on prouvding high-quality,

generic, and reusable spaces that meet the real estate requirements of a wide range of tenants. Upon completion, each development

and redevelopment project is expected to generate increases in rental income, net operating income, and cash flows. Our development

and redevelopment projects are generallyin locations that are highly desirable to high-quality entities, which we believe results in higher

occupancy levels, longer lease terms, higher rental income, hiPher returns, and greater long-term asset value.

Development projects generally consist of the ground-up development of generic and reusable laboratory facilities.

Redevelopment projects consist of the permanent change in use of acquired office, warehouse, or shell space into laboratory space.

We generally will not commence new development projects for aboveground construction of new Class A/A+ laboratory space without

first securing significant pre-leasing for such space, except when there is solid market demand for high-quality Class A/A+ properties.

Priority anticipated progects are those most likely to commence future ground-up development or first-ime conversion from

non-laboratory space fo laboratory space prior to our other future projects, pending market conditions and leasing negotiations.

Pre-construction activities include entitlements, permitting, design, site work, and other activities preceding commencement of

construction of aboveground building improvements. The advancement of pre-construction efforts is focused on reducing the time

required to deliver projects to prospective tenants. These critical activities add significant value for future ground-up development and

are required for the vertical construction of buildings. Ultimately, these projects will provide high-quality facilities and are expected to

generate significant revenue and cash flows. ) . . . . )
evelopment, redevelopment, and pre-construction spending also includes the following costs: (i) amounts to bring certain

acquired properties up to market standard and/or other costs identified during the acquisition process (generallh/w in two years of

aoc1U|5|t|on) and (i) permanent conversion of space for highly flexible, move-in-ready laboratory space to foster the growth of promising

early- and growth-stage life science companies. . . » o

Revenue-enhancing and reﬁqsmonlng capital expenditures represent spendlng to reposition or significantly change the use of

a property, including through improvement in the asset quality from Class B to Class A/At.

Non-revenue-enhancing capital expenditures represent costs required to maintain the current revenues of a stabilized

Broperly, including the associated costs for renewed and re-leased space.

iMdend payout ratio (common stock) | ) o
ividend payout ratio (common stock) is the ratio of the absolute dollar amount of dividends on our common stock (shares of

common stock outstanding on the resPective record dates multiplied by the related dividend per share) to funds from operations
attributable to Alexandria’s common stockholders —diluted, as adjusted.

Dividend yield
Dm]ﬂena ):|1e d for the quarter represents the annualized quarter dividend divided by the closing common stock price at the end
of the quarter.
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Fixed-charge coverage ratio . . . . . .

ixed-charge coverage ratio is a non-GAAP financial measure representing the ratio of Adjusted EBITDAto cash interest and
fixed charges. We believe that this ratio is useful to investors as a sup{;lemental measure of our ability to satisfy fixed financing
obligations and preferred stock dividends. Cash interest is equal to interest expense calculated in accordance with GAAP plus
capitalized interest, less amortization of loan fees and debt premiums (discounts). .
The following table reconciles interest expense, the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in
accordance with GAAP, to cash interest and computes fixed-charge coverage ratio for the three and nine months ended September 30,

2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Adjusted EBITDA $ 554908 $ 492,860 $ 1,660,551 $ 1,473,771
Interest expense $ 43550 $ 11411 $ 130,179 $ 42,237
Capitalized interest 86,496 96,119 249,375 274,863
Amortization of loan fees (4,222) (4,059) (12,510) (11,427)
Amortization of debt discounts (330) (306) (976) (898)
Cash interest and fixed charges $ 125494 $ 103,165 $ 366,068 $ 304,775
Fixed-charge coverage ratio:
— quarter annualized 4.4x 4.8x 4.5x 4.8x
—trailing 12 months 4.5x 4.9x 4.5x 4.9x

We are not able to forecast fourth quarter net income without unreasonable effort and therefore do not provide a reconciliation
for fixed-charge coverage ratio on a forward-looking basis. This is due to the inherent difficulty of forecasting the timing and/or amount
of items that depend on market conditions outside of our control, including the timing of dispositions, capital events, and financing
decisions, as well as quarterly components such as gain on sales of real estate, unrealized gains or losses on non-real estate
investments, impairment of real estate, and impairment of non-real estate investments. Our attempt to predict these amounts may
%roduoe 5|g{1lﬁcant but inaccurate estimates, which would be potentially misleading for our investors.
ross assets

3(3_ rotﬁs assedts )are calculated as total assets plus accumulated depreciation as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

in thousands):



September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Total assets $ 38,488,128 $ 36,771,402
Accumulated depreciation 5,624,642 4,985,019
Gross assets $ 44,112,770 $ 41,756,421

Initial stabilized yield (unlevered)

Initial stabilized yield is calculated as the estimated amounts of net operating income at stabilization divided by our investment

in the property. For this calculation, we exclude any tenant-funded and -built landlord improvements from our investment in the property.
Qurinitial stabilized yield excludes the benefit of leverage. Our cash rents related to our development and redevelopment projects are
generally expected to increase over time due to contractual annual rent escalations. Our estimates for initial stabilized yields, initial
stabilized yields (tcz_ash basis), and total costs at completion represent our initial estimates at the commencement of the project. We
expect to update this information upon completion of the project, or sooner if there are significant changes to the expected project yields

or costs.

«Initial stabilized yield reflects rental income, including contractual rent escalations and any rent concessions over the
term(s) of the Ie;ase(s{, calculated on a straight-line basis, and any amortization of deferred revenue related to tenant-
funded and -built landlord improvements. o L . .

«Initial stabilized yield (cash basis) reflects cash rents at the stabilization date after initial rental concessions, if any, have
elapsed and our total cash investment in the property.
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Investment-grade or publicly traded large cap tenants
Investment-grade or publicly traded large cap tenants represent tenants that are investment-grade rated or publicly traded
companies with an average daily market capitalization greater than $10 billion for the twelve months ended September 30, 2024, as
reported by Bloomberg Professional Senvices. Credit ratings from Moody's Ratings and S&P Global Ratings reflect credit ratings of the
tenant's parent entity, and there can be no assurance that a tenant’s parent entity will satisfy the tenant's lease obligation upon such
tenant’s default. Ve monitor the credit quality and related material changes of our tenants. Material changes that cause a tenants
market capitalization to decrease below $10 billion, which are notimmediately reflected in the twelve-month average, may resultin their
exclusion from this measure.
Investments in real estate o ) )

he Tollowing table presents our new Class A/A+ develo?ment and redevelopment pipeline, excludmg é::ropemes held for sale,
as a percentage of gross assets and as a percentage of annual rental revenue as of September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):

Percentage of
Book Value Gross Assets Annual Rental
Rewvenue

Under construction projects and one committed near-term project expected to $4,405,094 10% —%
commence construction in the next two years (55% leased/negotiating)
Income-producing/potential cash flows/covered land play 2,861,653 6 2
Land 2,073,678 5 —

$9,340,425 21% 2%

(1)Includes projects with existing buildings that are generating or can generate operating cash flows. Also includes development rights associated with existing operating
campuses.
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The square foota%e presented in the table below is classified as operating as of September 30, 2024. These lease expirations

or vacant space at recently acquired properties represent future opportunities for which we have the intent, subject to market conditions
ggdwjﬁ)%sr%r;%tﬁo commence first-time conversion from non-laboratory space to laboratory space, or to commence future ground-up
i DeviRedev RSF of Lease Expirations Targeted for
Development and Redevelopment
Property/Submarket 2024 2025 Thereafter(n Total
Committed near-term project:
4161 Campus Point Court/University Town Center Dev — 159,884 — 159,884
Priority anticipated projects:
311 Arsenal Street/Cambridge/Inner Suburbs Redev — 25,312 — 25,312
269 East Grand Avenue/South San Francisco Redev 107,250 — — 107,250
1020 Red River Street/Austin Redev — 126,034 — 126,034
107,250 151,346 — 258,596
Future projects:
100 Edwin H. Land Boulevard/Cambridge Dev 104,500 — — 104,500
éﬁgu 4£38 500, and 550 Arsenal Street/Cambridge/Inner Dev — — 375,898 375,898
Other/Greater Boston Redev — — 167,549 167,549
1122 and 1150 El Camino Real/South San Francisco Dev — — 375,232 375,232
3875 Fabian Way/Greater Stanford Dev — — 228,000 228,000
2100, 2200, and 2400 Geng Road/Greater Stanford Dev — — 78,501 78,501
960 Industrial Road/Greater Stanford Dev — — 112,590 112,590
Campus Point by Alexandria/University Town Center Dev — 109,164 226,144 (2 335,308
Sequence District by Aexandria/Sorrento Mesa DeviRedev — — 686,290 686,290
830 4th Avenue South/SoDo Dev — — 45615 45615
410 West Harrison Street/Elliott Bay Dev — — 17,205 17,205
Other/Seattle Dev — — 75,663 75,663
100 Capitola Drive/Research Triangle Dev — — 34,527 34,527
1001 Trinity Street/Austin Dev — 72,938 — 72,938
Canada Redev — — 247,743 247,743
104,500 182,102 2,670,957 2,957,559
211,750 493,332 2,670,957 3,376,039

1)Includes vacant square footage as of September 30, 2024. . K | .
2 Rer)msents 226,144 RSF of month-to-month leases in our University Town Center submarket primarily related to space being temporarily held over by an expiring tenant
at’buildings that are targeted for the future development of laboratory Space, subject to market conditions and leasing.
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Joint venture financial information . . ) - .
We present components of balance sheet and operating results information related to our real estate joint ventures, which are
not presented, or intended to be presented, in accordance with GAAP. We present the proportionate share of certain financial line items
as follows: (i) for each real estate joint venture that we consolidate in our financial statements, which are controlled by us through
contractual rights or majority voting rights, but of which we own less than 100%, we apply the noncontrolling interest économic
ownership percentage fo each financial item to arrive at the amount of such cumulative noncontrolling interest share of each component

resented; and (i) for each real estate joint venture that we do not control and do not consolidate, and are instead controlled jointly or

y our joint venture partners through contractual rights or majority voting rights, we apply our economic ownership percentage to each
financial item to arrive at our proportionate share of each component presented. »
The components of balance sheet and operating results information related to our real estate joint ventures do not represent .
our legal claim to those items. For each entity that we do not wholly own, the Lomt venture agreement %enerallydetermlnes what equity
holders can receive upon capital events, such as sales or refinancing, or in the event of a liquidation. Equity holders are normally
entitled to their respective legal ownership of anyresidual cash from a joint venture only after all liabilities, priority distributions, and
claims have been repaid or satisfied. ) . ) .
We believe that this information can help investors estimate the balance sheet and operating results information related to our
partially owned entities. Presenting this information provides a perspective notimmediately available from consolidated financial
statements and one that can supplement an understanding of the joint venture assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses included in
our consolidated resullts.
The components of balance sheet and operating results information related to our real estate joint ventures are limited as an
analytical tool as the overall economic ownership interest does not represent our legal claim to each of our joint ventures’ assets,
liabilities, or results of operations. In addition, joint venture financial information mayinclude financial information related tothe
unconsolidated real estate joint ventures that we do not control. We believe that in order to facilitate for investors a clear understanding
of our qperatin?aresulm and our total assets and liabilities, joint venture financial information should be examined in conjunction with our
consolidated statements of operations and balance sheets. Joint venture financial information should not be considered an alternative
tl\(/)b our consolidated financial statements, which are presented and prepared in accordance with

ga campus

Mega campuses are cluster campuses that consist of approximately 1 million RSF or more, including operating, active
development/redevelopment, and land RSF less operating RSF expected to be demolished. The following table reconciles our annual
rental revenue and development and redevelopment pipeline RSF as of September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands):



Annual Rental Revenue  Dewvelopmentand
Egdevelopment Pipeline

Mega campus $ 1,666,759 21,957,791
Non-mega campus 517,316 9,880,617
Total $ 2,184,075 31,838,408
Mega campus as a percentage of annual rental revenue and of total 76% 69%

development and redevelopment pipeline RSF

Net cash provided by operating activities after dividends . o o
et cash provided by operating acfiviies after dividends includes the deduction for distributions to noncontrolling interests. For
purposes of this calculation, changes in operating assets and liabilities are excluded as they represent timing differences.
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Net debt and preferred stock to Adjusted EBITDA
et debt and preferred stock fo Adjuste is a non-GAAP financial measure that we believe is useful to investors as a

sug[)lementa measure of evaluating our balance sheet leverage. Net debt and preferred stock is equal to the sum of total consolidated
debtless cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, plus preferred stock outstanding as of the end of the period. Refer to “Adjusted
EBITDAand Adjusted EBITDAmargin” in this section for further information on the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA
We are not able to forecast fourth quarter net income without unreasonable effort and therefore do not provide a reconciliation
for net debt and preferred stock to Adjusted EBITDA on a forward-looking basis. This is due to the inherent difficulty of forecasting the
timing and/or amount of items that dépend on market conditions outside of our control, including the timing of dispositions, capital
events, and financing decisions, as well as quarterly components such as gain on sales of real estate, unrealized gains or losses on
non-real estate investments, impairment of real estate, and impairment of non-real estate investments. Our attempt to predict these
amounts may produce significant but inaccurate estimates, which would be potentially misleading for our investors.
The following table reconciles debt to net debt and preferred stock and computes the ratio to Adjusted EBITDAas of
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 2024 December 31,2023

Secured notes payable $ 145,000 $ 119,662
Unsecured senior notes payable 12,092,012 11,096,028
Unsecured senior line of credit and commercial paper 454,589 99,952
Unamortized deferred financing costs 79,610 76,329
Cash and cash equivalents (562,606) (618,190)
Restricted cash (17,031) (42,581)
Preferred stock — —
Net debt and preferred stock $ 12,191,574 $ 10,731,200

Adjusted EBITDA

— quarter annualized $ 2,219,632 $ 2,094,988
—trailing 12 months $ 2,184,298 $ 1,997,518

Net debt and preferred stock to Adjusted EBITDA
— quarter annualized 5.5x 5.1x
—trailing 12 months 5.6x 5.4x
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Net o%erating income, net operating income (cash basis), and operating margin =~ .
e following table reconciles net income to net operating income and net operahnglnoome (cash baS|s)dand computes

operating margin for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Netincome $ 213,603 $ 68,254 $ 526,828 $ 323,652
Equityin earnings of unconsolidated real estate joint venture (139) (242) (424) 617)
General and administrative expenses 43,945 45,987 135,629 140,065
Interest expense 43,550 11,411 130,179 42,237
Depreciation and amortization 293,998 269,370 872,272 808,227
Impairment of real estate 5,741 20,649 36,504 189,224
Gain on sales of real estate (27,114) — (27,506) (214,810)
Investment (income) loss (15,242) 80,672 (14,866) 204,051
Net operating income 558,342 496,101 1,658,616 1,492,029
Straight-line rent revenue (29,087) (29,805) (125,676) (92,331)
Amortization of deferred revenue related to tenant-funded (329) — (329) —
and -built landlord improvements
Amortization of acquired below-market leases (17,312) (23,222) (70,167) (69,647)
Net operating income (cash basis) $ 511,614 $ 443074 $ 1462444 $ 1,330,051
Net operating income (cash basis) — annualized $ 2046456 $ 1,77229 $ 1949925 $ 1,773,401
Net operating income (from above) $ 558,342 $ 496,101 $ 1658616 $ 1,492,029
Total revenues $ 791,607 $ 713788 $ 2327449 $ 2128483
Operating margin 71% 70% 71% 70%

Net operating income is a non-GAAP financial measure calculated as netincome (loss), the most directly comparable financial
measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, excluding equity in the earnings of our unconsolidated real estate joint
ventures, general and administrative expenses, interest expense, depreciation and amortization, impairments of real estate, gains or
losses on earlyextm%bushment of debt, gains or losses on sales of real estate, and investment income or loss. We believe net operating
income provides useful information to investors r%garding our financial condition and results of operations because it primariIP/ reflects
those income and expense items that are incurred at the property level. Therefore, we believe net operating income is a useful measure
for investors to evaluate the operating performance of our consolidated real estate assets. Net operating income on a cash basis is net
operating income adjusted to exclude the effect of straight-line rent, amortization of acquired above- and below-market lease revenue,
and amortization of deferred revenue related to tenant-funded and -built landlord improvements adjustments required by We
believe that net operating income on a cash basis is helpful to investors as an additional measure of operating performance because it
eliminates straight-line rent revenue and the amortization of acquired above- and below-market leases and tenant-funded and -built
landlord improvements.
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Furthermore, we believe net operating income is useful to investors as a gerformanoe measure of our consolidated properties
because, when compared across periods, net operating income reflects trends in occupancy rates, rental rates, and operating costs, .
which provide a perspective notimmediately apparent from netincome or loss. Net operating income can be used to measure the initial
stabilized %ﬂelds of our properties by calculating net operating income generated by a properg/dlwded by our investment in the property.
Net operafing income excludes certain components from netincome in order to provide results that are more closely related to the
results of operations of our properties. For example, interest expense is not necessarily linked to the operating performance of a real
estate asset and is often incurred at the corporate level rather than at the property level. In addition, depreciation and amortization,
because of historical cost accounting and useful life estimates, may distort comparability of operating performance at the propertylevel.
Imgairments of real estate have been excluded in deriving net operating income because we do not consider impairments of real estate
to be property-level operating expenses. Impairments of real estate relate to changes in the values of our assets and do not reflect the
current operating performance with respect to related revenues or expenses. Our impairments of real estate represent the write-down in
the value of the assets to the estimated fair value less cost to sell. These impairments result from investing decisions or a deterioration
in market conditions. We also exclude realized and unrealized investment gain or loss, which results from investment decisions that
occur atthe oogoorate level related to non-real estate investments in publicly traded companies and certain privately held entities.
Therefore, we do not consider these activities to be an indication of operating performance of our real estate assets at the property
level. Our calculation of net operating income also excludes charges incurred from changes in certain financing decisions, such as
losses on early extinguishment of debt, as these charges often relate to corporate strategy. Property operating expenses included in
determining net operating income primarily consist of costs that are related to our operating properties, such as utilities, repairs, and
maintenance; rental expense related to ground leases; contracted senvices, such as janitorial, engineering, and landscaping; property
taxes and insurance; and property-level salaries. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of accounting and corporate
compensation, corporate insurance, professional fees, rent, and supplies that are incurred as part of corporate office management. We
calculate operating mar%ln as net o]peljatlng income divided by total revenues. ) o

We believe that in order fo facilitate for investors a clear understanding of our o?eratmg results, net operating income should

be examined in conjunction with netincome or loss as presented in our consolidated statements of operations. Net operating income
should not be considered as an alternative to netincome or loss as an indication of our performance, nor as an alternative to cash flows
as a measure of our liquidity or our ability to make distributions.



%@erating statistics

present certain operating statistics related to our properties, including number of properties, RSF, occupancy percentage,
leasing activity, and contractual lease expirations as of the end of the period. We believe these measures are useful to investors
because the?/facilitate an understandincg% of certain trends for our rog)erties. We comEute the number of properties, RSF, occupan
percentage, leasing activity, and contractual lease expirations at 100%, excluding RSF at properties classified as held for sale, for all
properties in which we have an investment, including properties owned by our consolidated and unconsolidated real estate joint
ventures. For operating metrics based on annual rental revenue, refer to “Annual rental revenue” in this section.

Same groge;gﬁ comparisons . ) _ ) ) '
a result of changes within our total property portfolio during the oomFaratlve periods presented, including changes from

assets acquired or sold, properties dplaoed info development or redevelopment, and development or redevelopment properties recently
placed into senvice, the consolidated total income from rentals, as well as rental operating expenses in our operating results, can show
significant changes from period to period. In order to supplement an evaluation of our results of operations over a given quarterly or
annual period, we analyze the operating performance for all consolidated properties that were fully operating for the entirety of the
comparative tﬁergods_presente_d, referred to as same properties. We separately present quarterly and year-to-date same property results
to align with the interim financial information required by the SEC in our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial
condition and results of operations. These same properties are analyzed separately from properties acquired subsequent to the first day
in the earliest comparable quart_er(ljy or year-to-date period presented, properties that underwent development or redevelopment at any
time during the comparative periods, unconsolidated real estate joint ventures, properties classified as held for sale, and corporate
entities (legal entities performing general and administrative functions), which are excluded from same property results. Additionally,
termination fees, if any, are excluded from the results of same properties. Refer to “Same properties” in ltem 2 for additional information.

Stabilized occupancy date . ) o
e ?ta ilized occupancy date represents the estimated date on which the project is expected to reach occupancy of 95% or
greater.
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Tenant recoveries . . ) " )

enant recoveries represent revenues comprising reimbursement of real estate taxes, insurance, utilities, repairs and
maintenance, common area expenses, and other operating expenses and earned in the period during which the applicable expenses
are incurred and the tenant’s obligation to reimburse us arises. . o .
We classify rental revenues and tenant recoveries generated through the leasing of real estate assets within revenues in
income from rentals in our consolidated statements of operations. We provide investors with a separate presentation of rental revenues
and tenant recoveries in “Results of operations” in ltem 2 because we believe it promotes investors’ understanding of our operating
results. We believe that the presentation of tenant recoveries is useful to investors as a supplemental measure of our ability to recover
operating expenses under our triple net leases, including recoveries of utilities, repairs and maintenance, insurance, property taxes,
common area expenses, and other operating expenses, and of our ability to mitigate the effect to netincome for any significant
variability to components of our operating expenses.
The following table reconciles income from rentals to tenant recoveries for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2024 and 2023 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Income from rentals $ 775,744 $ 707531 $ 2286457 $ 2,099,819
Rental revenues (579,569) (526,352) (1,737,804) (1,582,543)
Tenant recoveries $ 196,175 $ 181,179 $ 548,653 $ 517,276

Total equity capitalization . o . . ]
otal equity capitalization is equal to the outstanding shares of common stock multiplied by the closing price on the last trading
day at the end of each period presented.
Total market capitalization ) Lo
otal market capitalization js equal to the sum of total equity capitalization and total debt.
Unencumbered net operating income as a percentage of total net operating income

Unencumbered net operating income as a percentage of total net operating income is a non-GAAP financial measure thatwe
believe is useful to investors as a performance measure of the results of operations of our unencumbered real estate assets as it
reflects those income and expense items that are incurred at the unencumbered property level. Unencumbered net operating income is
derived from assets classified in continuing operations, which are not subject to any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, or other security
interest, as of the period for which income Is presented. | o

The following table summarizes unencumbered net operating income as a percentage of total net operating income for the

three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Unencumbered net operating income $ 553,589 $ 495012 $ 1644687 $ 1,488,795
Encumbered net operating income 4,753 1,089 13,929 3,234
Total net operating income $ 558,342 $ 496,101 $ 1658616 $ 1,492,029
Unencumbered net operating income as a percentage of total 99.1% 99.8% 99.2% 99.8%

net operating income
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Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding — diluted

From time to ime, we enter info capital market ransactions, including forward equity sales agreements (“Forward .
Agreements”), to fund acquisitions, to fund construction of our development and redevelopment projects, and for general working
capital purposes. We are required to consider the potential dilutive effect of our Forward Agreements under the treasury stock method
while the Forward Agreements are outstanding. As of September 30, 2024, we had Forward Agreements outstanding to sell an
a%;a%regate of 230 thousand shares of common stock. Refer to Note 13 — “Stockholders’ equity” to our unaudited consolidated financial
statements in Item 1 for additional information. . . . . )

The weighted-average shares of common stock outstand_m? used in calculating EPS — diluted, funds from operations per

share —diluted, and funds from operations per share — diluted, as adjusted, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024
and 2023 are calculated as follows. Aiso shown are the weighted-average unvested shares associated with restricted stock awards
used in calculating the amounts allocable to unvested stock award holders pursuant to the two-class method for each of the respective

periods presented below (in thousands):
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Basic shares for eamings per share 172,058 170,890 172,007 170,846
Forward Agreements — — — —
Diluted shares for earnings per share 172,058 170,890 172,007 170,846
Basic shares for funds from operations per share and 172,058 170,890 172,007 170,846
funds from operations per share, as adjusted

Forward Agreements — — — —
Diluted shares for funds from operations per share and 172,058 170,890 172,007 170,846
funds from operations per share, as adjusted

Weighted-average unvested restricted shares used in 2,838 2,124 2,901 2,187

calculating the allocations of net income, funds from
operations, and funds from operations, as adjusted
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest rate risk

The primary market risk to which we believe we may be exposed is interest rate risk, which may result from manyfactors,

including government monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic and political considerations, and other factors
that are beyond our control.

In order to modify and manage the interest rate characteristics of our outstanding debt and to limit the effects of interest rate

risks on our operations, we may utilize a variety of financial instruments, including interest rate hedge agreements, caps, floors, and
other interest rate exchange contracts. The use of these types of instruments to hedge a.Portlon of our exposure to changes in interest
rates may carry additional risks, such as counterparty credit risk and the legal enforceability of hedge agreements. As of September 30,
2024, we did not have any outstanding interest rate hedge agreements. —

Qur future earnings and fair values relating to our outstanding debt are primarily dependent upon prevalent market rates of

interest. The followm? tables illustrate the effect of a 1% change in interest rates, assuming a zero percent interest rate floor, on our
fixed- and variable-rate debt as of September 30, 2024 (in thousands):



Annualized effect on future earnings due to variable-rate debt:
Rate increase of 1% $ (1,166)
Rate decrease of 1% $ 1,166

Effect on fair value of total consolidated debt:
Rate increase of 1% $ (824,796)
Rate decrease of 1% $ 945,937

These amounts are determined by considering the effect of the hypothetical interest rates on our borrowings as of o
September 30, 2024. These analyses do not consider the effects of the reduced level of overall economic activity that could existin
such an environment. Furthermore, in the event of a change of such magnitude, we would consider taking actions to further mitigate our
exposure to the change. Because of the uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, the sensitivity
analyses assume no changes in our capital structure.

uity price risk L . L . . . .

have exposure to equity price market risk because we hold equity investments in publicly raded companies and privately

held entities. All of our investments in actively traded public companies are reflected in our consolidated balance sheets at fair value.
Qur investments in privately held entities that report NAV per share are measured at fair value using NAV as a practical expedient to fair
value. Our equity investments in privately held entities that do not report NAV per share are measured at cost less impairments,
adjusted for observable dpnce changes during the period. Changes in fair value of public investments, chan'g\;‘es in NAV per share
reported by privately held entities, and observable price changes of privately held entities that do not report NAV per share are .
classified as investment income in our consolidated statements of operations. There is no assurance that future declines in value will
not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations. The following table illustrates the effect thata 10% change in the
value of our equity investments would have on earings as of September 30, 2024 (in thousands):

Equity price risk:

Fair value increase of 10% $ 151933
Fair value decrease of 10% $  (151,933)
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Foreign currency exchange rate risk . o o .

We have exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk related to our subsidiaries operating in Canada. The functional .
currencies of our foreign subsidiaries are the local currencies in each respective country. Gains or losses resulting from the translation
of our foreign subsidiaries’ balance sheets and statements of operations are classified in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) as a separate component of total equityand are excluded from net income_(lossg. Gains or losses will be reflected in our
consolidated statements of operations when there is a sale or partial sale of our investment in these operations or upon a complete or
substantially complete liquidation of the investment. The following tables illustrate the effect that a 10% change in foreign currency rates
relative to the U.S. dollar would have on our potential future earnings and on the fair value of our netinvestment in foreign subsidiaries
based on our current operating assets outside the U.S. as of September 30, 2024 (in thousands):

Effect on potential future earnings due to foreign currency exchange rate:

Rate increase of 10% $ 223
Rate decrease of 10% $ (223)

Effect on the fair value of netinvestment in foreign subsidiaries due to foreign currency exchange rate:
Rate increase of 10% $ 40,407
Rate decrease of 10% $ (40,407)

The sensitivity analyses assume a parallel shift of all foreign currency exchange rates with respect to the U.S. dollar; however,
foreign currency exchange rates do not typically move in such a manner, and actual results may differ materially.

Qur exposure to market risk elements for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was consistent with the risk elements
Fresented abowe, including the effects of changes in interest rates, equity prices, and foreign currency exchange rates.

TEM 4. CONTROLS AND I-%ROCEJ.RES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of September 30, 2024, we had performed an evaluation, under the supenvision of our principal executive officers and

principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. These controls and
procedures have been designed to ensure that information required for disclosure is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the requisite time periods. Based on our evaluation, the principal executive officers and principal financial officer concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2024.

Changes in internal control over financial reﬁ)orting . . .

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial re#omng during the three months ended September 30,

2024 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In 2006, ARE-East River Science Park, LLC, a subsidiary of Aexandria Real Estate Equities, Inc., was granted an option to

incorporate a land parcel adjacent to and north of the Alexandria Centere for Life Science — New York City (“ACLS-NYC”) campus
(“Option Parcel”) into the existing ground lease of that campus. The Option Parcel will allow ARE-East River Science Park, LLC to
develop a future world-class life science building within the ACLS-NYC campus. ARE-East River Science Park, LLC's investment in pre-
construction costs related to the development of the Option Parcel, including costs related to design, engineering, environmental,
suneyfitle, and germnttmg:nd legal costs, aggregate $165.1 million as of September 30, 2024.

On August 6, 2024, ARE-East River Science Park, LLC filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern

District of New York against its landlord, New York City Health + Hospitals Corporation (“H+H”), and the New York City Economic
Development Corporation (‘EDC”). The lawsuit alleges two principal claims against H+H and EDC: fraud in the inducement, and, in the
alternative, breach of contract in violation of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. As alleged in the complaint, ARE-East
River Science Park, LLC’s claims arise from H+H’s and EDC’s misrepresentations and concealment of material facts in connection with
afloodwall, which H+H and EDC are seeking to require ARE-East River Science Park, LLC to integrate into the development of the
Option Parcel. ARE-East River Science Park, LLC alleges that H+H's and EDC’s misconduct have prevented it from commencing the
development of the Option Parcel. In light of the pending litigation, the closing date for the option and thus the commencement date for
construction of the third tower at the camgus are presentlyindeterminate. Among other things, ARE-East River Science Park, LLC is
seeking significant damages and equitable relief to maintain the option. . . . .

This matter exposes us to potential losses ranging from zero to the full amount of the investment in the project aﬁgregatmg

$165.1 million as of September 30, 2024, depending on any collection of damages and/or the ability to develop the project. We
performed a probability-weighted recoverability analysis based on initial estimates of various possible outcomes and determined no
?gﬁm*nent was present as of September 30,2024

I 1A RISKFACTORS o . .

In addition to the information set forth in this guarterlalret{)on on Form 10-Q, one should also carefully review and consider the
information contained in the other reports and periodic filings that we make with the SEC, including, without limitation, the information
contained under the caption “ltem 1A Risk factors” in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. Those,
risk factors could materially affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. The risks that we describe in our public
filings are not the onlyrisks that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us, or that we presentlydeem to be
immaterial, also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.. .

There have been no material changes in‘our risk factors from those disclosed under the caption “ltem 1A Risk factors” in our

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, except for the following updates:

The increased use of artificial intelligence (“Al”’) and automation in life science research and development

(“R&D”) activities may change the uses, space configurations and tenant requirements for our laboratory properties

in currently unforeseen ways. . . "

In recent years, some life science companies have augmented their traditional laboratory-based R&D efforts by

integrating Al, cloud computing, quantum computing and other advanced computational technologies into their R&D programs.

Itis expected that such technologies will accelerate and streamline a number of R&D functions, including, for example, through

the targeted design and evaluation of clinical trials and the efficient identification of the most promising drug development
candidates from among multiple possible drugs. In addition, life science companies, like companies in many other industries,

are increasingly integrating new technologies, such as robotics and advanced automation of recurring tasks, into their

businesses, including their R&D activities. Itis widely thought that the life science and healthcare industries, like most

industries, are in onlythe early stages of an advanced technology revolution that may have profound, and largely currently

unknown, impacts on their businesses, including the processes and strategies underlying R&D and commercialization of new

roducts.
.{;Ve have always strived to provide our tenants with state-of-the-art laboratory facilities incorporating cutting-edge
infrastructure features (including energy delivery, environmental, sustainability, security, and waste disposal features) to enable
our tenants to perform at the highest levels. It is currently unknown how the ongoing adoption of advanced technologies and
automation in the life science industry will impact the optimal space configurations and infrastructure features of the “laboratory
of the future,” and we may face new tenant requirements and requests that will require significant expenditures that may not be
entirely recoverable throu?h increased rents. For example, the adoption of Al by our tenan m?/lead to infrastructure
requiréments that our buildings currently do not accommodate, such as increased power needs due to high-performance
computing. Infrastructure upgrades may necessitate substantial capital expenditures and could potentiallyimpact the
environmental footprint of our building operations.
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If technological developments resultin a reduction or reconfiguration in space requirements by our tenants, demand by

individual tenants and prospective tenants for space may decrease over time. If we are not able to offset any reduction in demand from
the foregoing developments through repurposing space, property dispositions, or other means, the realization of any of the
aforementioned risks could have a material adverse impact on our revenues, net operatinlg income, results of operations, funds from
operahonsiopf(eratung margins, occupancy, earings per share, FFO per share, our overall business, and the market value of our
common stock.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Disclosure of 10b5-1 plans . . . "

None of our officers or directors had any contract, instruction, or written plan for the purchase or sale of our securities that was
intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) or any “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” in effect at any



time during the three months ended September 30, 2024.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS



Exhibit Exhibit Title Incorporated by Date Filed

Number Reference to:

3.1* Aicles of Amendment and Restatement of the Company, dated May 21, 1997 Form 10-Q August 14, 1997

3.2* Certificate of Correction of the Company, dated June 20, 1997 Form 10-Q August 14, 1997

3.3* Articles of Anendment of the Company, effective as of May 10, 2017 Form 8-K May 12,2017

34 Articles of Anendment of the Company, effective as of May 18, 2022 Form 8-K May 19, 2022

3.5* Articles Supplementary, dated June 9, 1999, relating to the 9.50% Series A Form 10-Q August 13, 1999
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

3.6* Articles Supplementary, dated February 10, 2000, relating to the election to be Form 8-K February 10, 2000
subject to Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the Maryland General Corporation Law

3.7* Aricles Supplementary, dated February 10, 2000, relating to the Series A Form 8-K February 10, 2000
Junior Participating Preferred Stock

3.8* Articles Supplementary, dated January 18, 2002, relating to the 9.10% Form 8-A January 18, 2002
Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

3.9* Articles Supplementary, dated June 22, 2004, relating to the 8.375% Series C Form 8-A June 28, 2004
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

3.10* Articles Supplementary, dated March 25, 2008, relating to the 7.00% Series D Form 8-K March 25, 2008
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

3.11* Articles Supplementary, dated March 12, 2012, relating to the 6.45% Series E  Form 8-K March 14,2012
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

3.12¢ Articles Supplementary, effective as of May 10, 2017, relating to Reclassified  Form 8-K May 12,2017
Preferred Stock

3.13* ér(’)nz%r;ded and Restated Bylaws of the Company (Amended September 21,  Form 8-K September 21, 2023

10.1 Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of September 19, N/A Filed herewith
2024, among the Company, as Borrower, Alexandria Real Estate Equities,
L.P., as a Guarantor, Citibank, N.A, as Administrative Agent, and the lenders
and other parties thereto
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on October 2
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/s! Joel S. Marcus

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
1,2024.

Joel S. Marcus
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(Principal Executive Officer)

Is! Peter M Moglia

Peter M Moglia

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

s/ Marc E. Binda

Marc E. Binda
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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